

User manual

- ◆ Read and understand the User Manual before using the machine.
- Failure to follow the operating instructions may result to injury and/or machine damage.

Take note: The product images shown are for illustration purposes only. Actual appearance and technical specifications of the machine may vary due to product enhancement.

<Please wear safety goggles and safety mask to avoid eye injury from metal chips and dusts and to prevent exposure from inhalable harmful elements and particles.> *Debris produced during engraving process like metal chips and dusts may cause eye injury if they get stuck in your eye or may cause respiratory problems if inhaled.

> This manual has been drawn up by BBJE. All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced or used in any form or by any means without the permission of BBJE. Edition: Oct, 2021

> > Best Built Jewelry Equipment 42 Andrews Road Hicksville, NY 11801 516- 868-6045 www.jdsincbb.com

Contents

Precautions for use	2
Model	
BB-S7	5
1. Package Contents	5
2. Specifications	7
3. Description	
(1) Machine	8
(2) Clamp	10
(3) Keypad	
(4) Menu	
(5) Display	
(6) Status indicator	31
(7) Switching Tools	32
4. Installation	33
(1) Machine Installation	33
(2) Program Installation	35
(3) Front Cover	37
(4) IO Port	39
(5) Back Cover	40
5. Operation of the Marking Machine	41
(1) Self-diagnose Procedures	
(2) Marking Procedures	
Before Using the Program	
Program Usage Description	
2. Text Object Property	
3. Rotation Tool Property	
4. How to Englave for Each toolpath	00 71
3. Create Toolpath	
(1) 1001. Add/Delete/Edit	
6 Toolnath Object Property	73 76
7 NC Data Output	70
(1) Transfer the Toolpath Data after Creating a Toolpath	
(2) Transfer the Toolpath Data after Entering Text	
(3) Camera	81
8. Auto Focus	83
Marking Process	84
Ring Inner/Outer Marking Process	89
Photo Marking	94
Pen Engraving Process	98
Engraving Curved Materials	102
Layout of Text in a Circle	103
Layout of Text in a Curve	105
Tayt Change	
Text Clidinge	100
Serving on Decign Somple	
Saving as Design Sample	
Loading and Editing Image	116
1. Loading an image	
2. Converting and editing image	
Import a File in SVG format	
1. Iouch Sensor (Iool Calibration)	
2. Laser Pointer Calibration	
3. Saving Multi-performance Clamp Origin Position	
4. Saving New Clamp Origin Position	
6. Rotation Clamp Origin point (7 axis)	125 107
7 Camera calibration	1∠۱ 128

Precautions for use

Read and follow the instructions carefully for safe use of the machine. Failure to follow safety precautions may result to injury and/or machine damage.

Intended use: BB-S7 is intended for engraving

- Please follow the necessary safety precautions to prevent injury and/or machine damage.
- Please read carefully and understand the instructions below for proper and safe use of the machine.



Failure to follow these instructions may result to machine damage.

Failure to follow these instructions may result to physical injury or harm.

Safety Precautions on Electrical System



Do not use a damaged power cord or a loose electrical outlet. This may cause electric shock or fire.



Do not pull a plug by the cord. Do not grab a plug with wet hands. This may cause electric shock and burns.



If smoke comes out of the machine, switch off the machine immediately. Do not attempt to repair and/or disassemble the machine, contact our technical support for immediate diagnosis and repair.



Safety Precautions on Machine Operation





Be sure to use goggles to prevent eye injury from metal chips and dusts. Use a safety mask to prevent exposure from inhalable elements and particles.



Be sure to use a Chip collector to remove the particles produced during engraving process. Debris like metal chips and dusts may cause serious eye injury if they get stuck in the eye, and may cause respiratory problems if inhaled.



Be sure to place the machine on a firm, flat and level surface. If the machine is not properly installed or placed, the machine may fall, causing physical injury, electric shock or fire.



Do not disassemble, assemble or modify the machine. This can lead to machine failure and damage, causing fire or electric shock. Please contact our technical support for proper diagnosis and inspection, calibration, and repair.



Do not plug in two or more devices in a single outlet simultaneously. Overloading your plug sockets may lead to overheating which may cause fire.



Pull out the power plug when the machine is not in use.



Plug the machine into a grounded outlet only. The machine may fail if plugged into an ungrounded outlet, causing property damage, physical injuries, electric shock or fire.



Avoid using materials that may get caught or jammed in the machine. The engraving and cutting performance and quality of the machine may vary depending on the materials used.



Protect your fingers, hands and wrists during operation. The engraving cutter of the machine is sharp and may cause cuts and/or serious injuries if get caught in between the axis.



Do not put any foreign objects or any fire hazards on the machine. Never put the machine near or above any heating devices or any flammable materials.



Warning

Be sure to keep the machine out of children's reach and sight. Children's curiosity may lead to injury.



Safety Precautions on Machine Operation

Protect your hands, wrists and fingers. Do not let any of your body parts or any foreign objects get caught in the machine during operation. The tools of the machine are sharp, and may cause serious physical injury.





Do not put any foreign objects or any tiny metals inside the machine. This may result to machine failure and damage, causing fire or electric shock.



Do not attempt to disassemble and clean the machine if the machine suddenly generates some type of lubricant oil. Contact our technical support immediately.



Other Precautions



Do not disassemble or modify the machine. This can cause machine failure and damage.



In order to prepare for an emergency, in case of a sudden machine malfunction or failure, users are strictly advised to not leave the machine unattended while in operation. Users should refrain from engaging in any activity that diverts his/her attention while actually engaged in operating the machine.

<PROPER MACHINE DISPOSAL>



The machine contains valuable raw materials and electronic components which must be properly disposed of in equipment disposal containers.

According to European guidelines on proper equipment disposal:

•Do not dispose of together with household waste.

•Used electric and electronic equipment must be collected separately and not be placed in municipal waste.

Laser Specifications

The machine utilizes red laser 'CLASS 2' as a guide laser.

- CLASS 2: Class 2 laser is a relatively weak laser that is considered safe for normal operation Its visible beam does not cause any harm or damage on a person's eye unless deliberately stared into it. It is not a skin or materials burn hazard as well.

Class	Class 2
Output	<1mW
Wavelength	650nm

Please wear safety glasses during engraving process for safety. Debris like metal chips and dusts may cause serious eye injury if they get stuck in the eye.







If there is smoke, moisture, oil, dust or water in the place where the machine is installed, do not use the machine. This may cause electric shock or fire.



Be sure that the machine is placed and kept in a room temperature. If the temperature drops below freezing, the machine may not work property.

Model

Model	BB-S4	BB-E4	BB-S7	BB-E7
Engraving area	213*161	216*158	112*100	112*100
Rotary Clamp	*	*		
Spindle	*		*	
DC Motor	-	38w	-	38w
Spindle RPM	-	15,000	-	15,000
Probe Sensor	*		*	

* This table shows the differences between models. Please check **<u>BB-E7</u>**.

BB-S7

1. Package Contents

BB-S7 provides the following tools and devices. The contents of the package may vary if optional items are purchased.

Take note:

*Cutter, tip and spindle belts easily wear out. Make sure to replace them regularly or as per maintenance schedule.

*All pictures shown are for illustration purpose only. Images may differ from the actual products. *Be sure to use a safety mask and safety glasses to avoid injury during machine operation.

Name	Picture	Quantity	Usage
BB-S7	But and the second seco	1EA	Marking machine * Be sure to use a safety mask and safety goggles during machine operation for safety.
Power adapter (CP-01&CP-02)		1EA	Power supply * Use a grounded outlet only. Do not plug the machine into an ungrounded outlet.
USB cable (CP-11)	9	1EA	For connecting to PC
USB		1EA	To install MagicEngrave software * See program installation for further details.
User manual		1EA	Operating manual
T-wrench(2.5mm) (CP-T25)		1EA	For tightening/unscrewing the bolt.
L-wrench(1.5mm) (CP-L15)]	1EA	For tightening/unscrewing the bolt.
Ruler (CP-24)		1EA	For measuring the material.
Tool fixing bolt (M5x6)		3EA	To fasten the spindle tool.
L-tool fixing bolt (M3x4)		3EA	To fasten the L-tool tip.
Diamond tip(4Ø) (T40-DA22)		1EA	For spindle: Tool used for engraving
Diamond tip(3Ø) (T31-DA09)		1EA	For L-tool: Tool used for engraving the inside of a ring.
Bakelite plate (120x100x2t)		1EA	For calibrating the camera.

Multi-performance Clamp (CP-250)		1EA	To hold materials with different shapes in place.
Pin (CP-172)		6EA	To hold materials with irregular shapes in place.
Height adjustable clamp (CP-252)		1EA	To adjust the height of the clamp.
Finger chuck handle (CP-31)		2EA	To fasten the rotary clamp.
Flat finger chuck (CP-38)		3EA	For holding rings in place when engraving the inside or outside.
Round finger chuck (wide width) (CP-39)		3EA	For holding rings in place when engraving the inside or outside.
Finger skin (CP-41)		1SET	For protecting finger chuck.
Finger chuck spanner (CP-21)	C	1EA	For tightening/unscrewing the finger chuck.

*Optional (Sold separately)

		1	
Back Cover (CP-253BB)		1SET	Back Port Cover
Front cover		1SET	To prevent inhaling of dusts and scattering of chips produced during engraving process.
Spacer block (CP-250S)		1SET	To adjust the height of the clamp.
Tailstock (CP-251)		1SET	To hold pens in place.
Pin clamp (CP-80)		1SET	To hold materials with different shapes in place.
Cutlery clamp (CP-83)		1SET	To firmly hold spoons in place.
Watch adapter (CP-84)	@ 0	1SET	To firmly hold watch in place.

Bracelet adapter (CP-85)	•: :•	1SET	To firmly hold bracelets in place.
Bar necklace adapter (CP-166)	Yredt	1SET	Jig for holding materials with narrow width (about 2-3mm) in place. (Used for securing pendants, bar necklaces, etc.)
Curved tag adapter (CP-182)		1SET	Jig for holding curved materials in place. (Used for securing curved pendants, chain bracelets, etc.)
Round chuck finger (Narrow width)		3EA	For holding rings in place when engraving on the inside.

2. Specifications

Operating voltage	AC 100~240V
Power consumption	25W
Frequency	50/60Hz
Dimensions	402.5 mm(W) x 376.5 mm(D) x 352.5 mm(H) 15.8 in(W) x 14.8 in(D) x 13.9 in(H)
Max. engraving area	140mm(X) x 100mm(Y) x 38.5mm(Z) 5.51 in(X) x 3.93 in(Y) x 1.51 in(Z)
Maximum material height	60mm/ 2.4 in
Rotary operating range (Based on 2mm/ 0.08in)	Cylinder outside diameter: MAX. 92mm (X) / MAX. 3.62 in (X) Cylinder inside diameter: MAX. 14mm (X) / MAX. 0.55 in (X)
Weight	26kg / 57.32lb
Bluetooth	Bluetooth LE module/ Bluetooth 5.0
Transfer speed	80mm/sec (X,Y), 18mm/sec (Z)
Temperature	15 – 40°C
Humidity	10 - 90%
Purposes	Metal marking, Pen marking, Ring marking (inside), Ring marking (outside), etc.



K. USB port

L. Power port _____/ M. IO port _____

Α	Camera	Shows actual view of material to design.
в	Pressure Adjuster	Adjusts the pressure of the engraving tool.
С	L-Tool	Secures the L-tool tip when engraving on the inside of rings or bangles. **To change tools, use a 1.5mm L-wrench.
D	L-Tool Fixing Bolt	Secures the L-tool.
Е	Spindle	Secures the tool for engraving. ※To change tools, use a 2mm T-wrench.
F	Tool length sensor	Automatic tool length measurement sensor.
G	Control Panel	Controls the power button and the manual control for regulating engraving operations.
н	Status Indicator	Shows the status of the device via blinking interval
I	Emergency Switch	Stops the machine during emergency.
J	Power Switch	Switches the power on/off.
к	USB Port	To connect USB cable to PC.
L	Power Port	To connect power adapter to supply power to the machine. *Use a grounded outlet only. Do not plug the machine into an ungrounded outlet.
М	IO Port	To connect the dust connector.

(2) Clamp 1) Multipurpose Clamp

The package includes a multifunctional clamp that is easily assembled, disassembled and transformed into 3 different types of clamps. It can be adjusted according to the height of the material, and can be expanded according to the material's thickness, size, and shape. This single clamp alone makes engraving on various materials possible without the use of any additional clamps.



[How to secure the material in place]

Use the clamping knob to secure your material in place. To loosen or widen the clamp, turn the clamping knob counterclockwise; to fasten it, turn the knob clockwise.





Marks may be left on the material if fastened tightly.

[How to position the material]

Use the vertical ruler bar as an alignment guide to help you position and align your material to the clamp with ease and accuracy. Properly place your material on the clamp then check the alignment.



[How to secure the material with irregular shape in place]

Use the clamping pins to firmly hold materials with irregular shapes in place. To secure the clamping pins to the clamp, simply insert the pins into the pin holes then fasten them.



[How to adjust the height of the clamp]

Below are instructions on how to adjust the height of the clamp according to the thickness of the material.



< Clamp with clamp base >

1. Turn the clamp over (to the back) then screw the bolts (M4x20mm). *Use a 3mm L-wrench to screw the bolts.



2. Turn the clamp over (to the front) then pull out the clamp base.



3. Remove the clamping pins then secure the material to the V groove of clamp without clamp base. (See picture below for reference).





<Clamp without clamp base>



<Cylinder material>

[Height Adjustable Clamp]

Height adjustable clamp is used to adjust the height of your material.



Height Adjustable clamp clamping knob



1. Turn the Height Adjustable clamp clamping knob counterclockwise to detach the Multipurpose Clamp.



2. Turn the clamping knob counterclockwise to detach the height adjustable clamp.



3. Attach the multipurpose clamp then fasten it by turning the clamping knob clockwise.





[How to adjust the height of the clamp]

※Optional device; sold separately

Below are instructions on how to adjust the height of the clamp according to the thickness of the material.

1SET

Spacer block (CP-250S)



To adjust the height of the clamp.

1. Turn the clamping knob counterclockwise to detach the clamp.



2. Turn the clamp over (to the back) then screw the bolts (M4x20mm). ****Use a 3mm L-wrench to screw the bolts.**



3. Once the bolts are removed, turn the clamp over (to the front) then pull out the clamp base. Then, reassemble the spacer block to pin.



* After secure the spacer block, then secure the material to the V groove of clamp.



4. Screw the spacer block fixing bolt (M4x20mm). ***Use a 3mm L-wrench to unscrew the bolts.**



5. Secure the base clamp by attaching it to the pins.



6. Turn the clamp over (to the back) then unscrew the bolts (M4x40mm). **** Use a 3mm L-wrench to unscrew the bolts.**





<u>* To assemble or reassemble the spacer block, use the appropriate bolts. Be sure to use and secure the spacer block using the correct type of bolts.</u>





<Spacer block fixing bolt- M4x20mm>

Contraction of the local division of the loc

<Clamp base fixing bolt- M4x40mm>

[Optional items for Multipurpose Clamp] -Pin clamp(%Optional device; sold separately)

Pin clamp (CP-80)	•	1SET	To hold materials with different shapes in place.
Pin (CP-172)		5EA	To hold materials with irregular shapes in place.
Wrench bolt (M4x6)		5EA	To fasten the clamp.
L-wrench(3mm) (CP-L30)		1EA	For tightening/unscrewing the bolt.



- Cutlery clamp (*Optional device; sold separately)



- Watch adapter (*Optional device; sold separately)

Watch adapter (CP-84)	6 0 0 0	1SET	To firmly hold watch in place.
Wrench bolt		5EA	To fasten the adapter.
L-wrench(3mm) (CP-L30)		1EA	For tightening/unscrewing the bolt.



- Bracelet adapter (* Optional device; sold separately)

Bracelet adapter (CP-85)	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	1SET	To firmly hold bracelets in place.
Pin		4EA	To secure the adapter.

- Bar necklace adapter(%Optional device; sold separately)

Bar necklace adapter (CP-166)	redt .	1SET	Jig for holding materials with narrow width (about 2- 3mm) in place. (Used for securing pendants, bar necklaces, etc.)
Pin		4EA	To secure the adapter.



*Materials like bar necklaces or pendants may come off easily when attaching to the jig. Press the material with your finger to secure it to the jig and be sure to not let your finger get caught while pressing.



- Curved tag adapter (*Optional device; sold separately)

Curved tag adapter (CP-182)	1SET	Jig for holding curved materials in place. (Used for securing curved pendants, chain bracelets, etc.)
Pin	4EA	To secure the adapter.



BB-S7's package includes a rotary clamp that is used for engraving the inside and outside of a ring.



[How to activate ring engraving mode]

Press the rotary clamp button to activate ring inside/outside engraving mode.



[How to secure the ring in place]

When engraving the outside

Place the ring onto the finger chucks. Rotate the rotary clamp to outward-inward directions to lock and secure the ring in place. Make sure that the ring is firmly attached and locked so it won't fall off or spin during operation.



When engraving the inside

Insert the ring in between the finger chucks. Rotate the rotary clamp to inward-outward directions to lock and secure the ring in place. Make sure that the ring is firmly attached and locked so it won't fall off or spin during operation.



[Finger Chuck Types]



There are three types of finger chucks available to match the shape and size of the ring.



Flat chuck finger *Included in the package







Round chuck finger (narrow) * Sold separately

[How to replace finger chucks]

Choose the appropriate finger chucks for your ring. Insert the finger chucks into the holes then fasten them tightly with the use of a finger chuck spanner. ***The finger chuck spanner is included in the package.**



3) Tailstock *Optional device; sold separately

Tailstock is used to firmly hold cylindrical materials in place. It is specifically used to avoid objects with cylindrical shapes such as pen, tumbler and wine glasses to tilt to one side during engraving process.



-Height (from bottom to central axis): 69mm -Lateral distance (from left to right): 109.5mm

To set up the tailstock the following tools are needed:

Tailstock (CP-251)	1EA	To hold pens in place.
Pen adapter (CP-251P)	1EA	To hold pens in place; it goes with a tailstock.
Tailstock fixing bolt (CP-251B)	1EA	For fastening the tailstock.
Pin (6Øx25mm)	2EA	To secure the tailstock.

[How to set up the tailstock]



1. Insert the pin into the pin holes.



2. Secure the tailstock with a tailstock fixing bolt.



3. Use the finger chucks of the rotary clamp to clamp your material. Once your material is clamped, push the tailstock to the right side until it touches the tip of your material. ***The device can slide left to right/right to left.**



4. Fasten the tailstock slide fixing bolt to secure your material.





(3) Keypad

DE	DESKTOP ENGRAVING MACHINE				
	Displa	y (S (S (E) (C) (C) (C) (C) (C) (C) (C) (C) (C) (C			
		Operation Buttons			
Disp	olay	Status display			
Operation	n Buttons	Activate the operations intended to perform			
	Direction Key (X,Y/Z/A)	 Engraving area adjustment Direction: (X) Moves X axis (Y)(Z)(A) Moves Y/Z/A axis *Axis movement can be changed by using the operation buttons. 			
¢	Vacuum ON/OFF	 Chip collector power button Automatic control: The device starts automatically once the engraving operation begins and stops automatically once the engraving operation is completed. Manual operation: Automatic control is deactivated if the device is manually switched on. Once the engraving operation is completed, the device should be manually turned off. We strictly advise our users to use the Chip collector during engraving operation for safety. The Chip collector prevents exposure form harmful inhalable particles and debris like metal chips and dusts which may cause eye injury if they get stuck in the eye or respiratory problems if inhaled. 			
Start Start marking. Start • Repeat press (tap • Menu: F		 Start marking button Start marking: Long-press (for 2 seconds) the button to start marking. Repeat marking: Press the button to finish marking, then double-press (tap twice) the button to repeat marking. Menu: Press OK when using the menu. 			
M	Menu	Enter the menu mode.			
	Stop	Stops/cancels marking.			

(4) Menu

To enter Menu mode, press button. Select a menu item using the and buttons then press buttons the press button to enter the menu item.

1. Tool Change		Changes the tool.	
2. Select Origin		Sets the current position to the clamp origin.	
	1. Touch Sensor	Adjusts touch sensor settings.	
2 Calibration	2. Pointer/Flat	Adjusts pointer/flat settings.	
3. Calibration	3. Pointer/Rotary	Adjusts pointer/rotary settings.	
	4. Pointer/L-Tool	Adjusts pointer/L-Tool settings.	
4. Measure Z-Ref		 Height Only Horizontal(X) Slope Vertical(Y) Slope Plane(XY) Slope *In rotary mode, only [1. Height Only] is enabled. 	
5. Ring Inside Area Check		Sets a method for checking the inner diameter engraving area: 1. L-tool 2. Laser pointer	
6. (Chuck Revolution	Rotates the rotary chuck.	
	1. Status LED	Adjusts status LED brightness	
7. Adjust Brightness	2. Inside LED	Adjusts inside LED brightness	
	3. Pointer	Adjusts focus laser pointer brightness	
8	. Vacuum Setup	Sets the Chip collector function. -Set to automatic control. -Set the Chip collector type: Dry/wet type	
9. To	ool-Pos Recording	Records your current location; set whether to activate or not.	
10. Auto Zref on Repeat		Sets Auto Zref method for repetitive engraving:1. No measurement2. Height measurement3. Height measurement + area check	
11. Front cover		Selects whether to use the front cover or not. *Optional device; sold separately	

(5) Display

The display shows the status, functions, mode, and check messages. Icons are displayed differently depending on the selected function. The four buttons at the bottom represent different functions and each function vary depending on the selected mode.

[Standby-Flat]



	∦	Bluetooth	Icon appears when Bluetooth is activated			
Status	₽X	Auto Zref on Repeat	 ₩× ₩× No measurement ₩× Height measurement only ₩× Height measurement + area check 			
	- G	Chip collector Power	Chip collector ON/OFF: Icon does not appear when OFF			
		Focus Pointer	Laser pointer ON/OFF			
		Front Cover	Selects whether to use the front cover or not. *Optional device; sold separately			
	XY:#1-C	X-Y Origin	X-Y origin •[#1]: Clamp No. (1-5) •[C]: Origin No. (C: Center; origin No.: 1-8)			

Mode	\$	Flat Mode	Switches to flat mode		
	N	Rotary Mode	Switches to Rotary mode • The mode changes in sequence (OUTER DIAMETER → INNER DIAMETER → OUTER DIAMETER) in a loop whenever the button is clicked. • Switched to the INNER DIAMETER mode instantly if double- clicked		
	₹ <u></u>	Tool change	Switches to tool change mode		
	AF	Auto focus	Activates camera auto focus position • Auto moves to view position after height measurement • Refreshes the camera display at MagicEngrave. * Variety of features available for use once MagicEngrave software is enabled.		

[Move Mode – Flat]					
Press one of the () () () buttons in the [STANDBY] mode to activate [MOVE].					
***	₩	XY:#1	-C		
X: 1	.73mm	Y: 18.86mm	Kessage		
D	×Y ≠Ø	₩ € _A	Kernel Mode		
	$\textcircled{\bullet}$		Button		
Mes	sage	X-Y Position	The message on display varies depending on the Y-axis mode: • $Y \rightarrow Y$: X-Y axis position • $Y \rightarrow Z$: Z-axis position • $Y \rightarrow A$: A-axis position		
	Ð	Standby Mode	 Switches to the STANDBY mode Switches automatically to [STANDBY] mode if not in use for 10 seconds. Press any buttons to activate [MOVE] mode. 		
Mode	×Y ≁0	Save Origin	Saves the current position as the XY origin *Short-press: Temporary save *Long-press: Permanent save ↓ ZA Y-axis movement mode: ↓ Save XY Origin ↓ ZA Z-axis movement mode: ↓ Save Z Origin ↓ YZ A-axis movement mode: ↓ Save A Origin		
		Laser Pointer	Turns ON/OFF the laser pointer		
	¢ĭza	UP-DOWN Button Settings	The mode changes in sequence (Y-axis \rightarrow Z-axis \rightarrow A-axis \rightarrow Y-axis) in a loop whenever the button is clicked.		

[Standby - R	otary]		
-8₩ \$	*		
	Ring	Outside	
	()×] ← Mode
			Button
Mode	Ø	Rotary Mode	Switches to rotary mode • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
	₽ņ ₽	Finger Mode	 The mode changes in sequence (Flat finger → Round finger → cylinder) in a loop whenever the button is clicked. ↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓



Message		A-axis Position	Displays the A-axis position	
	Ð	Standby Mode	 Switches to the STANDBY mode Switches automatically to [STANDBY] mode if not in use for 10 seconds. Press any buttons to activate [MOVE] mode. 	
Mode	× ≁Ø	Save Origin	 Saves the current position as the XY origin *Short-press: Temporary save *Long-press: Permanent save If ⁺Z (A-axis mode): If the laser pointer is ON, the laser pointer position of the current finger is saved as the origin. If ⁺A (Z-axis mode): The SAVE ORIGIN icon changes to Z (+ Ø), and the current Z-axis position is saved as the origin. Outer diameter mode: Z-axis origin of outer diameter Inner diameter mode: Z-axis origin of inner diameter 	



UP-DOWN Button Settings



[Engraving Mode]





* 🐨	=⇒10mm/s				
	Paus	sed			
×.		- 💱 🕟	Kernel Mode		
\bigcirc		$\bigcirc \qquad \bigcirc$	Button		
	×,	Return back to Previous position	Returns back to the previous position and resumes engraving.		
Mode	₹ŗ	Tool Change	Switches to tool change mode		
-	ightarrow	Resume	Resumes engraving.		

(6) Status indicator

The status indicator is placed at the bottom left side and bottom right side of the machine. It is used to indicate the status of the device.



The machine displays flashing or blinking lights to show its current status. The lights displayed indicate the following status:

	Status			Blinking Interval	
	Wait	ing	-		
	Engra	iving	-		
	Opera	ating	I		
	Notification				
	Err	or			
Long-press	button (for 2 sec	conds) to enter m	ienu mode	·.	
Select [7. Adj	u st Brightness] th	nen press 🜔 t	outton.		
		1. Status	LED	Adjusts status LED brightness	
	7. Adjust Brightness	2. Inside	LED	Adjusts inside LED brightness	
		3. Point	er	Adjusts focus laser pointer brightness	
Select [1. Stat	us LED] then pres	s button.			
Adjust the brig	htness using the		n X) button	S.	
Status LED Brightness					

(7) Switching Tools

Do not let any of your body parts or any foreign objects get caught in the machine during operation. The tools of the machine are sharp, and may cause serious physical injury.



[Spindle]

Name	Picture	Quantity	Usage
T-wrench (2.5mm)		1EA	Tool for tightening/unscrewing of bolt.

As shown below, insert the **2.5mm wrench** into the fixing bolt. Turn the wrench to the left to unscrew bolt. To prevent the tool from falling to the floor, grab tool with your hand then pull it out. Once the tool is removed, replace it with a new tool then secure it using a wrench for tightening bolts. ***See package contents**





When unscrewing the tool fixing bolt, hold the tool with your hand while unscrewing to avoid the bolt from dropping on the floor.

[L-Tool]

Name	Picture	Quantity	Usage
L-wrench (1.5mm)		1EA	Tool for tightening/replacement of bolt.
L-tool fixing bolt (M3x4)		3EA	L-tool tip fixing bolt

As shown below, insert the **1.5mm wrench** into the fixing bolt. Turn the wrench to the left to unscrew bolt. To prevent the tool from falling to the floor, grab tool with your hand then pull it out. Once the tool is removed, replace it with a new tool then secure it using a wrench for tightening bolts. ***See package contents**



4. Installation

- ***** Please follow the instructions below for proper installation of the machine, software and other devices.
- ***** The software program requires <u>Windows OS 7 or higher.</u>

(1) Machine Installation

BB-S7 cannot operate alone as a desktop engraver. It cannot proceed to engraving and cutting operation without the use of a computer and a software.

The machine should be connected to a personal computer for the machine to operate. The software provided along with the machine must be installed to the computer to run the program for engraving, cutting and marking.

[How to install the machine]

1. To start the machine, plug its power cable into a grounded outlet. ***See precautions for use for safety.**

2. To connect the machine to the computer, plug in the USB cable on the back of the machine then on the computer's USB port.



-Power switch





-Emergency Switch

*****If the machine won't turn on, check the emergency switch.



(2) Program Installation

BB-S7 comes with a software, MagicEngrave program. The program requires the use of Windows OS 7 or higher for the software to run.

[How to install the software]

1. Insert the USB into your computer`s USB port. A notification will pop-up on your screen regarding installation. ****USB is included in the package.**

2. Follow the instructions below to install the software.

3. Follow the steps in order until installation is complete.

4. In case program installation won't automatically run upon inserting the USB into your computer, go to My Computer's USB drive then run Install program.




- Program Description

Once the installation is completed, the following icon will appear on your desktop. The description of the icon is as follows:



As a design & marking software program, it features the following functions: marking design, marking option, Toolpath setting, transfer of Toolpath data.

(3) Front Cover

*Optional device; sold separately

[How to install the front cover]

1. Set the [Bolt (M4x12) – M4 Washer – M4 Spring washer x 2] in order.



2. Secure the [step 1] with spacer. Secure the spring washer so that it fits into the front cover hole.



3. Secure the cover stopper with bolt (M4x6).



4. Secure the other side in the same way.



5. To enable Front Cover function, press button on the keypad to enter [MENU]. Then, select **[11. Front Cover]** option on the menu. Front Cover icon will be displayed on the LCD screen (as shown below) once it's activated.



6. Check the positioning of the head and the clamp. Front Cover open and close function is disabled when the head is positioned at the right end (of the machine) and the clamp at the front.

[How to position the head and the clamp]

-Standby mode: Press button on the keypad to move the head and the clamp to a position where the Front Cover can be opened and closed.

-Auto-positioning of the head and the clamp: The head and the clamp are automatically positioned upon completion of initial marking (i.e., when the engraving operation is completed).

External IO port input to the machine is at 5V, use 5mA or less. BB-S7 uses a LAN cable to control operation by receiving an external signal through the IO port.



OUT	5V DC OUT	Requires a DC 5V output to connect.
IN	START/STOP	Starts or stops engraving operation when DC 5V is connected.
OUT	VACUUM ON/OFF	Chip collector ON/OFF output status: DC 5V output: ON; GND output: OFF
OUT	Universal Output	Universal output port for DC 5V output and external devices.
IN	Serial Communication Transmission	Receives serial communication from external devices.
OUT	Serial Communication Transmission	Transmits serial communication from external devices.
		**OUT: Signal received from external devices

**IN: Signal received by the machine

(5) Back Cover

-Optional (Sold separately)

Back Cover (CP-253BB)		1EA	Back Port Cover
Square Magnet		2EA	To secure the back cover.
Bolt (M3x8mm)	×	3EA	To secure the square magnet.

1. Assemble the back cover then attach it to the back side of the machine.



2. Insert the bolt into the square magnet then screw it into the machine.



3. Attach the back cover. The back cover is secured by the square magnets.



5. Operation of the Marking Machine

BB-S7 performs self-diagnosis upon turning ON. During self-diagnosis, the machine checks the following in order:

(1) Self-diagnose Procedures

- 1. If a certain axis is detected by the sensor, it moves away from the detected area.
- 2. Checks probe sensor and returns to the Origin point
- 3. Checks Z-axis sensor and returns to the Origin point
- 4. Checks Y-axis sensor and returns to the Origin point
- 5. Checks X-axis sensor and returns to the Origin point
- 6. Confirmation sound and standby

If no problem is found, it goes into standby mode with a confirmation sound.

(2) Marking Procedures

1. Turn on the marking machine.



***** If the machine does not turn on, check the emergency switch.

2. Run the program to connect it to the machine.



3. Place your material on the work area.



4. Make your design then create a toolpath.



5. Click the [Machine] button to send the marking data.

Position and Size * Position and Size * Position X: 45.49mm	Rat : Paget	* 7*			Devce
See Trailers Order:	C	Surface Height Heasurement	Notend Suffee	MAGIC	Od the future shore to dat expanse or cuttrop. Reflects Dames On <u>A</u>
Fil Sta Fil Co		Adjust Engraving Poston	Here to Vie Automatically	Start Engraving Cancel	** Detoct V Filter
					, <

6. Press start button on the machine to begin the engraving process.



Before Using the Program

The property of the object (i.e., size, shape, position, etc.) can be changed or modified when the object is selected.



The mouse cursor display changes depending on the function (i.e., text input, resize, select, etc.).



Program Usage Description

Shown below is the window that will appear once the program starts running. Icons displayed on the window may vary depending on the selected mode. The name of each category is as follows:



Text Input Mode

Click T]- [Text Input] button on the upper center of your screen or double-click on the composition area to input text.



Object Selection Mode

After entering the text, use Selection] button with your mouse or right-click the text on the composition area to switch to selection mode. To switch to text input mode, double-click on the selection mode.



Object Rotation Mode

To activate object rotation mode, double-click the text while in selection mode.



1. Toolbar

Alignment Tools



[Line/Curve]

 Click a certain point then hold your mouse and drag to make a dot line appear. Designate the distance then right-click to create a straight line. Then, press "Ctrl" key on the keyboard and move the mouse to create a horizontal line or a vertical line.
Click a certain point and designate a distance. Hold your mouse and drag to make a curve appear. Right-click to create a curve.

[Circle/Oval/Pie]	
	Click the work area then hold your mouse and drag to designate the size of a circle. Press "Shift" key on the keyboard then drag your mouse to create a perfect circle.
	Click Arc button on the circle object property window to convert to arc. The start/end of an angle of an arc can be assigned, or adjusted by dragging the start/end with the mouse. Click CW/CCW button to create a reversed arc image.
	Click Pie button on the circle object property window to convert to pie (a filled arc). The start/end of an angle of a pie can be assigned, or adjusted by dragging the start/end with the mouse. Click CW/CCW button to create a reversed pie image.





Click the work area then hold your mouse and drag to designate the size of a polygon. The number of vertices can be assigned on the polygon object property window.







 $[90^{\circ}CW]$ $\longrightarrow \qquad \overrightarrow{PQ}$ Rotates the image by 90^{\circ}.



[Alignment options]



	₽.	Align to the left of base object
	4	Align to the center of base object
Alignment	릐	Align to the right of base object
Aighment	t <u>D</u>	Align to the top of base object
	-0]-	Align to the center of base object
	004	Align to the bottom of base object
Adjust horizontal gap	0-0-0	Align horizontal gap between objects evenly
Adjust vertical gap	봄	Align vertical gap between objects evenly
	↔	Make same width
Same size	1	Make same height
	+	Make same size
Alignment		Horizontal center in page
Alighment	+ - +	Vertical center in page
	5	Bring to front
Order		Send to back

Object Tools





Create a barcode object.



🔡 2D Ba	rcode Generator	×
Encode	Decode	
Value:		
	QR Code Data Matrix Encoding: Byte Version: 7 ~ Correction Level: M ~	Dot Size: 4 Foreground Color: Background Color:
	ОК	Cancel



🗟 👖 · 🖉 · 🔎 🗛 ABC 🔝 🐟 **Object Propert** Templates 😑 templ 1 × ABC 90 M

Import design sample or save current object as design sample.



What is a Design Sample?

100

Design sample is the object saved in the design sample library. Design samples can be easily and quickly imported from the design sample library and edited freely.



DC

🛃 🖨 🗶 🗗

Use selection mode to modify the object's property or adjust its size and position. To use, click the object created in the work area then adjust its property. To input text, right-click.



🗄 🕀 🔾 | Fit to page 🕞 🗔 🖉 🖑

[Object selected]



39.56mm, -55.09mm)

CAP NUM

Τ [Text input]

To input text, click

button then click the object in the work area or, simply double-click to enter text.





Cursor (Text input mode)

To modify the object's font style and size, click

T



button then hold and drag the character/s with the mouse.

Click \square button to create a text box. Then hold and drag the mouse to adjust the size of the text box. The size of the text box limits the number of character input.



A blinking cursor display indicates 'enter text.'



Or, go to [Menu \rightarrow Insert \rightarrow Text box].

Inse	ert	Tool <u>p</u> ath	Te <u>x</u> t	T <u>r</u> ansform	<u>L</u> ayout	<u>T</u> ool	<u>W</u> ii
	Sin	gle Object					
2	P	en					
0	<u>C</u>	urve					
0	E	lipse					
	R	ectangle					
\odot	P	olygon					
	s	piral					
<u>[]</u>	I	ext					
T	Te	ext Box					



Create text objects along a circle.





Hold and drag the mouse to draw character/s to create an object with the use of drawing pen. The drawing line's thickness can be adjusted in the drawing object property window.





[Outline stroke of object] Apply outline stroke to the object.



ABC [Auto Inverts Color]

The color of one object auto inverts to opposite color to contrast the other object's color when overlapped.

Click ABC button then select the object to be placed over the target object. Upon pacing the selected object over the target object, the selected object auto inverts to an opposite color.



For texts, click the ABC button then drag the selected text and place it over the target object.





If the color is not inverted, go to [Layout menu \rightarrow Order \rightarrow Top Most] then place the selected object over the target object.



[Image]

Import image (e.g., bmp, jpeg, gif, png ... etc.).





Erase the line of a created object.

Click the object to be erased then hold and move the mouse over the line to erase. (Take note that some objects may not be erased with the Line eraser tool).



Toolpath

*Please refer to [4. How to engrave for each toolpath] for details.





What is a Toolpath?

Toolpath is a path where the tool passes by for marking.

Toolpath is usually displayed in red color and the marking tool moves along the path as it engraves.

Origin Point Setting Tools

MagicEngrave - [Design1 : Page1*]			- 🗆 ×
Eile Edit View Insert Toolgath Text Transform	ayout <u>T</u> ool <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp		- 8 ×
	🛾 🕒 🕞 • 🔜 中 中 中 🕄 エ	• 🌈 • 🌽 🛤 🕫 🖾 🜨 🚍 🗖	• 🗖 • 🗖 • 🤱 🌈 🍣 🖶 📜
Object Property 7 Design	I:Page1*		4 ▷ × Device
Font * * *	-907570959095909590959095903590151059510-	1828383838484858589858787878	
Canta Arial			^ 🥰 🛛
Portc Anal Preview			Engraver 1
Size: 37 V A A			Click the button above to start
★ B/U TT	(a) (b) (b) (b) (b) (b) (b) (b) (b) (b) (b	20 2021 (K. KORE K. KORE K. KORE K. KORE K. KORE F.	engraving or cutting.
MAGIC			Sym
			d a l b
	ton have a first a source and it first a first a source of the source first	IN ANY IN ANY IN ANY IN ANY IN ANY A ANY A	
22			Refresh 2
Text Alignment			
Hors Alian:		a first at the first at that at the first at	Camera On m
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		AF 6
Vert.Align: 📕 🗮 🖬 🚉 📑 🚥 🛱			rer
	•N/A(-il(
Move X: 0%			fa Datast
A Move V: 0%			
	CA KA A KA KAKA KARA KA KAKA KARA KA	10 10 1 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Filter m
Width: 0% Angle: Udeg		A KARANINA KARANINA KARANINA K	Ē
Line 0% · Text 0% · RE			
Space: Space: Space:		a side a side a side a side a side a side a	C.
Position and Size		A ANA A ANA A ANA A ANA A ANA A ANA A	
Position X: -18.48mm			· · · · · • · · • · · • · · •
× v. 433mm * 25			
Size X: 36.97mm			> Device S Layer
	Fit to page 🗸 🖧 🗛 🔯 🖉		
keady		(-18.48mm, -4.33mm) [36.97mr	I X 8.05MM J CAP NUM



Basic Tools

MagicEngrave - [Untitled1 : Page1*]		- 🗆 ×
Eile Edit View Insert Toolgath Text Transform Layout	<u>I</u> ool <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp	_ & ×
📾 2 🔿 🗖 🔿 🎆 · 🎞 🕅 📿 🛕	🕒 🖓 • 南田 🗛 • 🔝 🔯 🏹 • 🖉 • 🚄 🛤 🖉 🖾 🜨 问 • 🗖	· 🗖 · 🤱 🌽 😂 🖶 🛛
Object Property Untitled1 : Pag	4 b ×	Device
Font * ^ %90959515	LT.R	Desi:
Font: Arial V Preview		Engraver 1
Size: 37 V Ă Ă		Click the button above to start
★ B/ Ľ TT 🧃		engraving or cutting.
MAGIC		Sym
1		(m)
		Refresh
Text Alignment		Camera On
		AF >PO
	MAGIC	er
Move X: 0%		4 Detect
Move Y: 0%		Filter E
Width: 0% Angle: 0deg		lindin
Line 0% Text 0%		^ <u>•</u>
Space: Space: Space:		Calli
Position and Size		graph
Position X: -18.48mm		y For
Y: 4.33mm	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	< >
		N Device 🗢 Layer
	to page 👻 🗠 🔕 🔍 🖑	
Ready	(-18.48mm, -4.33mm) [36.97mm x 8.65	imm] CAP NUM

[New document]

Open a new page.

MagicEngrave - [Design4 : Page4]		- 🗆 X
Eile Edit View Insert Toolgath Text	Iransform Layout Tool Window Help	_ & ×
Image: State of the state o	∥ֿ≱©ֿ∧⊑∣∞।⊈।⊡₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽	· □ · A / 🖉 🖶 🛛
Object Property 7	Design1 : Page1* Design2 : Page2 Design3 : Page3 Design4 : Page4 4 b ×	Device
Templates (*)	ใช้ แปลงสองสองสองสองสองสองสองสองสองสองสองสองสอง	S Forgary 1
ABC ABC		Click the button above to start engraving or cutting.
Cylinder Embossing Die Carving	Design1 : Page1* Design2 : Page2 Design3 : Page3	Refresh Camera On AF
		+ Detect
		Filter Binding
		Calligraphy F
		<
		M Device 📚 Layer
1 🗋 🗔 👪 📖 🕺 🖓 🖓 🦄 🦄 🎮	* : ' 언, 언, Fit to page 🔹 나십, 💫 [신] (*) (-67.34mm, -62.62mm.)	NUM

] [Open]

Open a file in "*.dgn" file format.

Select a file on the "Open" window and click "Open" button.

[Save document]

Save the design created on program as "*.dgn" file format.

Choose the location (folder) in which the file will be saved then enter the file name before clicking "Save" button.

[Print] Print the design created on program.

X [Cut]

Cut the selected object. Click cut $\overset{}{\lambda}$ on the menu or press Ctrl+X on the keyboard.



[Duplicate Horizontally or Vertically]

Click icon in toolbar to multi-copy the same object at once, or go to [Edit \rightarrow Copy \rightarrow Duplicate Horizontally or Vertically...].



Paste the cut or copied object. Click is on the menu or press [Ctrl+V] on the keyboard.



-Undo: To reverse the action recently done.

Go to [Menu] \rightarrow [Tool] \rightarrow [Option] \rightarrow [General] to adjust the number of undo action.



-Redo: To restore the action that was previously done.



Zoom in/out/move Tools

C			Font * ^
Engraver 1			Font: Arial V Preview
Click the button above to start engraving or cutting.	Click engr	da d	Stee: [37
Refres			Text Alignment
Camera AF		MACI	Horz.Align:
		MAGI	Al Move X: 0% +
V Filter			Move Y: 0%
		· 現 · 現 ·	Width: 0% Angle: 0deg + Line 0% + Text 0% + Space: 0% +
			Position and Size
			Y: 4.33mm
C Device Cayer	↓ ↓	Real Contraction page - Real Contractions	Size X: 36.97mm
imm] CAP NUM	(-18.48mm, -4.33mm) [36.97mm x 8.65mm]	•	ady

[Zoom in]

The screen appears much larger and nearer.





 Θ

🔨 [Zoom out]

The screen appears much smaller and farther.





Fit to page

Zoom in/out ratio]

Select the desired screen ratio. The size of the screen will appear base on the selected ratio.



Select a certain spot on the object then hold and drag the mouse to enlarge it.





[Fit to object] Enlarge the object to fill in the screen.





(Fit to page)

Adjust the page size to see the whole work area.





[Panning]

Drag the screen with the mouse to move it.





2. Text Object Property

Select the text object to see its property. The property of the object will appear on the left side of the screen.

Font	۲
Font: Arial	~ Preview
Size: 43	× Ă Á
★ В / 🖳	т Т
MAGIC	>
Font: Arial	~ Preview

[Font]

Designate font. Click "Preview" button or the arrow beside it to designate font.





Adjust the size of the selected text. Click A

[size] button to adjust the size of the font or the arrow beside







Text Alignment	*
Horz.Align: 📑 🗮 🗮 Orient.: Vert.Align: 📄 🗮 🖃 🏭 👫	
Move X: 0%	
Width: 0% Angle: Odeg 🔺	

[Text Alignment]

[Align to left]	Align characters to the left in the text box.
[Align to center]	Align characters to the horizontal center in the text box.
[Align to right]	Align characters to the right in the text box.
[Both]	Align characters evenly to both sides in the text box.
[Align to top]	Align characters to the top in the text box.
[Align to center]	Align characters to the vertical center in the text box.
[Align to bottom]	Align characters to the bottom in the text box.

⊟ [Horizontal text]	Arrange characters horizontally.
[Vertical text]	Arrange characters vertically. M A G I C
Move X: 0%	Move the selected character horizontally (left, right).
Move Y: 0%	Move the selected character vertically (up, down).
Width: 0%	Adjust the width of the selected character.
Angle: Odeg	Rotate the selected character.

Position/Size

*

Position	X: -21.48mm • Y: -5.03mm •
Size	X: 108.02mm • Y: 10.06mm • Keep Ratio

[Position/Size]

X: -50.09mm 💌 Y: -15.18mm 💌	Designate the location of the selected object	
X: 40.20mm Y: 3.74mm	Designate the size of the selected object	
Keep Ratio	Click "check" to maintain the same ratio for the object's width and height. Click "uncheck" to adjust the object's width and height separately.	



[Line and Fill Shape]

0,002mm 👻	Line thickness of the selected object
	Line type of the selected object
Black 👻	Line color of the selected object
•	Color filled inside of the selected object
Black -	Shape filled inside of the selected object

3. Rotation Tool Property

Rotation	
Rotation Angle:	
Rotate selected object	
Rotate creating new object	
	[Rotation]

Rotation Angle: 1.0deg	Designate the rotation angle of the selected object. Enter the desired angle of rotation or click the up/down arrow buttons.			
Rotate selected object	Rotate selected object according to the angle entered.			
Rotate creating new object	Add a new object and rotate it according to the angle entered.			

4. How to Engrave for Each Toolpath

MagicEngrave - [Design4 : Page4*] X					
Elle Edit View Insert Toolgath Tegt Transform Layout Iool Window Help					
	▲□□□□□□□□□□□	🔽 T[• 🖉 • 🛴 AB 🗤 🖾 🔝 🔝 🗖 • 🗖 •	□· A // 谷 🕀		
Object Property 4 Design1 :	Page1* Design2 : Page2 Design3 : Page3 Design4 : Pa	age4*			
★ B / U T T ^	99 19 19 99 99 99 49 49 39 39 39 39 19 19 19 1	ñ			
REDT			A 💎 🏁 📲		
> 22			raver 1		
			above to star		
			igioning of coloring.		
Text Alignment		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	0		
Horz.Align: 📑 📑 📑 Orient.:					
Vert.Algn: 📕 🖶 📰 📫 🦷			(m) 2		
			111 1		
Move X: 0%			14		
Move Y: 0%			1 < 0		
	DF				
Width: 0% 🔶 Angle: 0deg 🔶 🚔	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •				
Line 0% • Text 0% •			7/		
Space: Space: Space:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		-9		
Buddan and Blan					
Position and size					
Position X: -15.57mm					
× v5.53mm • 26					
Size X· 27.43mm					
T 11 00 mm					
Y: 11.09mm					
Keep Ratio					
v 84 <		>	🖞 Device 🗢 Layer		
	Fit to page 🗸 🗔 🔿				
Creates outline toolpath from the selected objects.		(-15.57mm, -5.53mm) [27.43mm x 11.09n	m 1 CAP NUM		
and the second second second second		(1999, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1910, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1910, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1919, 1910, 1919, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1900, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1900, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 19100, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 1910, 191	200 TEMP		



What is a Toolpath?

Toolpath is a path where the tool passes by for marking. Toolpath is usually displayed in red color and the marking tool moves along the path as it engraves.



[Cut-out toolpath]

Creates a toolpath that will cut out the selected object. The toolpath boundary will be wider than the boundary of the selected object depending on the thickness of the tool. ***This toolpath must be used when cutting.**



Creates a toolpath that will engrave the center line of the selected object.





"Single line toolpath" process may cause deviation on center line. It is recommended to use fonts with thinner lines to reduce deviation.



Convert Object to Toolpath				×
				Target Objects:
Tool: Edit Diamond Tip Endmil Cutter [0.4mm] Endmil Cutter [0.5mm] Endmil Cutter [0.7mm] Endmil Cutter [0.7mm] Endmil Cutter [0.7mm] Standard Finishing Cutter Standard Roughing Cutter (1 V-Cutter	Name: [Diamond Tip] Type: Diamond Drag	Preset: Edit Contour Diamond Tip Boundary-Line Diamond Tip ContourLine Diamond Tip ContourLine (Narrov Diamond Tip Hatching Diamond Tip Hatching [Cross] Diamond Tip Hatching [Narrow] Diamond Tip Inline Diamond Tip Outline Diamond Tip Outline		MAGIC
Option Depth: 0.4mm		Speed XY Speed: 24mm/s	Z Clearance: 0.5mm Z Dwell Time: N/A	Transmit Create Toolpath
	Engrave Twice	Fast	Toolpath Quality: Normal V	Cancel



[Scan-line toolpath]

Creates toolpath that will engrave inside area of the selected object's boundary. "Scan line toolpath" may appear similar to "Hatching toolpath" but it is specifically used to engrave on logos, patterns or objects with larger areas.





[Contour line toolpath]

Creates a toolpath that will engrave the selected object with contour lines.

MAGIC→MAGIC



This converts an image into a half-toned image and engraves the object in dots or horizontal lines using a V-cut tool. This process is only applied to engraving machines with rotating-spindle function like BB E7, E4 etc.





What is Half-toned Engraving?

Half-toned engraving converts light and dark areas of a picture or an image into lines or dots in different sizes to express a fine image.

[Simulate toolpath processing] Click this button to see the predicted image result of the toolpath processed by the selected tool.



[Show toolpath only] Click this button to make the toolpath the only visible object on the screen (while all the other objects are temporarily hidden). Click this button again to reveal the other objects.



5. Create Toolpath

Hatching Toolpath			×
MAGIC		Tar	get Objects:
Tool: Edit Damond Tip Endmil Cutter [0.4mm] Endmil Cutter [0.6mm] Endmil Cutter [0.6mm] Endmil Cutter [0.7mm] Endmil Cutter [0.7mm] Standard Finishing Cutter Standard Finishing Cutter [1]	Preset: Edit DiamondTip Hatching DiamondTip Hatching [Cross] DiamondTip Hatching [Narrow]	Direction:	/IAGIC
Option Depth: Z Pitch 0.4mm Hatching Gap: Batching Gap: Margin: 0.1mm Domm Depth Depth: Z Pitch Depth	Speed: Z Speed: Z Speed: Z Speed: Z Speed: Z Speed:	Z Clearance: 0.5mm ~ Z Dwell Time: N/A ~	Transmit Create Toolpath
☐ Engrave Outline Engrave Twice	Fast Fast	Toolpath Quality: Normal V	Cancel

Notice Tools in [Tool] option may vary according to types of models.

ΤοοΙ	Designate a tool to be used for engraving. Each tool setting value can be changed by clicking Edit or Add button.	
Preset	Hatching gap, depth, engraving speed and others are pre-set for each engraving option. It is not necessary to assign each value every time as the values is automatically pre-set. Each value can be changed by clicking Edit or Add button.	
		The following hatch lines are applied to hatching toolpath only:
-----------	-----------------	---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Direction		 : A tool path is created in the horizontal direction : A tool path is created in the vertical direction : A tool path is created in the left diagonal direction : A tool path is created in the right diagonal direction : A tool path is created in the cross hatched direction : A tool path is created in the cross hatched direction : A tool path is created in the cross hatched direction : A tool path is created in the cross hatched direction
	Depth	Engraving: Refers to the applied pressure and not the actual engraving depth. The higher the pressure is, the deeper it imprints.Cutting: Refers to the actual engraving depth when using rotary tools like end mills, V cutters, etc.
Option	Z Pitch	Designate the depth when cutting the engraving depth little by little. This option is necessary when cutting thick materials with a thin tool.
	Hatching gap	Designate hatching gap. 0.1mm 0.2mm 0.3mm
	Margin	Designate a margin between object outline and toolpath.

	Engrave outline	If this option is checked, a toolpath with an outline is created. If unchecked, a toolpath without an outline is created.			
	XY speed	Designate a speed at which XY axis will move during the engraving.			
Speed	Z speed	Designate a speed at which Z axis will move during the engraving.			
	Engraving s	peed is displayed in colors according to tools or engraving options.			
Move Option	Z clearance	This designates the height to be applied for the clearance between the tool and the surface of material when moving to another engraving location. When moving to another engraving location, it is necessary to lift Z axis to prevent the tool from coming in contact with the material surface before moving.			
	Z dwell time	This designates no-load rotation time of end-mill and V-cutter after they reach the target depth and before moving to X, Y axis point. It is possible to damage the tool as rotation speed reduces while engraving. Set up the Z-dwell time to recover the full rotation speed before engraving. * Recommended time: 0.5 ~1 second.			
Transmit		Toolpath output window is displayed			

(1) Tool: Add/Delete/Edit

Check "Edit" button to see Add/Delete/Edit buttons.

Tool:	🗹 Edit	
Diamond Tip Endmill Cutter [0,4mm]	^	
Endmill Cutter [0.5mm] Endmill Cutter [0.6mm]		_
Endmill Cutter [0.7mm] Endmill Cutter [0.8mm]		Add
Endmill Cutter [2.0mm] Standard Finishing Cutte	r	Delete
Standard Roughing Cutt	er (1 🗸	Edit

Add

Designate a name for the tool to be added along with its type and other options like tip width, then click "OK" button. The tool will then be added to the tool selection list.

	user tool		
Path:	C:₩Users₩RY	′U₩Desktop₩N	lagicEngrave_22072
ool Paran	eters		
Tool Type			
Diamond	Drag 🗸		
U			
		ų H	Tip width:

Delete

Select a tool to be deleted then click "Delete" button to remove the tool from the list.

Tool:		Tool:	
Diamond Tip DotPeen Endmill Cutter [0.4mm] Endmill Cutter [0.5mm] Endmill Cutter [0.6mm] Endmill Cutter [0.7mm] Endmill Cutter [0.8mm]	\rightarrow	Diamond Tip DotPeen Endmill Cutter [0.5mm] Endmill Cutter [0.6mm] Endmill Cutter [0.7mm] Endmill Cutter [0.8mm] Laser	A III

Edit...

Select a tool to modify then click "Edit" button. Click "OK" button to save the modified value.

Path:	C:₩Users₩R	YU₩Desktop₩	MagicEngrave_22072
Tool Param	neters		
Tool Type	:	_	
Diamond	Drag 🗸		
T			
—			
		H H	Tip width:
			0.01mm

(2) Engraving Option: Add/Delete/Edit

Check "Edit" button to see Add/Delete/Edit buttons.

Preset:	Edit	
Diamond Tip Hatching Diamond Tip Hatching [4 Diamond Tip Hatching [4	Cross] Narrow]	
		Add Delete
		Edit

Add Enter a name then set the hatching gap, engraving depth and speed. Click "OK" button and the option will be added to the selection list.

Material Option			×
Name: user setting			
File Path: C:₩Users₩RYU	J₩Desktop₩MagicEngra	ve_220728₩driv	ers₩user setting.m
Cutter: Diamond Drag	~ 👤		
Hatching:	Depth:	XY Speed	Z Speed
	0.4mm +	24mm/s	24mm/s
	Z Pitch		
0			
Unterline Const	Engrave Twice		
0.1mm	Z Clearance:		
Margin:	7 Dwell Time		Tooloath Color:
0mm ÷	N/A V		Red ~
Toolpath Quality: Normal	\sim	OK	Cancel

Delete Select an option to be deleted then click "Delete" button to remove the option from the list.



Edit... Select a tool to modify then click "Edit" button. Click "OK" button to save the modified value.

Material Opt	tion			×	
Name:	DiamondTip Hatching				
File Path:	C:\Users\RYU\Desktop\MagicEngrave_220728\drivers\DiamondTip H;				
Cutter:	Diamond Drag 🗸 💆				
Hatching Angle	g:	Depth: 0.4mm Z Pitch Depth:	XY Speed 24mm/s	Z Speed 24mm/s	
Ha D Ma	Atching Gap: .1mm • argin: mm •	Z Clearance: 0.5mm Z Dwell Time: N/A		Toolpath Color:	
Toolpath Q	Quality: Normal	~	OK	Cancel	

6. Toolpath Object Property

Select the toolpath object to see its property and/or to adjust its speed and depth. The toolpath object property will appear on the left side of the screen.

Toolp	ath				3
U	Тур	e: Dian	nond D	lrag	
		De	pth:	0.4mm	•
Z Org	. Offse	et:	0 5	Z Pitch	
N/A	~				~
				7.0	2227
XY S	peed	Z Sp	eed	Z Clearan	ce:
XY S	ipeed	Z Sp	eed	Z Clearan 0.5mm	ce: ~
XY S 24m	ipeed	Z Sp 24m	eed nm/s	Z Clearan 0.5mm Z Dwell T	ce:
XY 5 24m	ipeed nm/s	Z Sp 24m	eed nm/s	Z Clearan 0.5mm Z Dwell T	ce:
XY S 24m	peed m/s	Z Sp 24m	eed nm/s	Z Clearan 0.5mm Z Dwell T N/A	ce: ~ ime: ~
XY S 24m	peed m/s	Z Sp 24m	eed nm/s	Z Clearan 0.5mm Z Dwell T N/A	ce: ~ ime: ~
XY S 24m	ipeed	Z Sp 24m	eed nm/s	Z Clearan 0.5mm Z Dwell T N/A	ce:
-XY S 24m	ipeed nm/s	Z Sp 24m	eed nm/s	Z Clearan 0.5mm Z Dwell T N/A	ce:
XY S 24m	speed nm/s	Z Sp 24m	eed	Z Clearan 0.5mm Z Dwell T N/A	ce: ~ ime: ~
24m	speed	Z Sp 24m	eed	Z Clearann 0.5mm Z Dwell T N/A	ce: ime: v

	Engraving : Refers to the applied pressure and not the actual engraving depth. The higher the pressure is, the deeper it imprints.
Depth	Cutting : Refers to the actual engraving depth when using rotary tools like end mills, V cutters, etc.
	Designate the depth when cutting the engraving depth little by little. This option is necessary when cutting thick materials with a thin tool.
Z pitch	
	Actual engraving depth
XY speed	Designate a speed at which XY axis will move during the engraving.
Z speed	Designate a speed at which Z axis will move during the engraving.
	This designates the height to be applied for the clearance between the tool and the surface of material when moving to another engraving location. When moving to another engraving location, it is necessary to lift Z axis to prevent the tool from coming in contact with the material surface before moving.
Z clearance	Z Clearance

Z dwell time	This designates no-load rotation time of end-mill and V-cutter after they reach the target depth and before moving to X, Y axis point. It is possible to damage the tool as rotation speed reduces while engraving. Set up the Z-dwell time to recover the full rotation speed before engraving. *Recommended time: 0.5 ~1 second.
Engrave twice	Engrave the design twice.

7. NC Data Output (1) Transfer the Toolpath Data after Creating a Toolpath

5

Select a toolpath then click the **Engraver** "Engraver" button on the top-right of the screen to transfer the data of the selected toolpath to the BB-S7 machine.

ext Property path Type: Damond Drag Depth: 0.4mm 2 Depth: 0.2mm 2 Depth:				Ir O H
path Type: Damod Drg Depth: 0.4mm 2 Contract Type: Damod Drg Depth: 0.2mm 2 Contract Type: Damod Drg Depth: 0.2mm 2 Contract Type: Damod Drg Depth: 0.2mm 2 Contract Type: Distance Type: Dista	ct Property 4	Design1 : Page1*	4 b X Device	
Type: Damned Drag Peptr: U-Amm Type: Damned Drag Prove Type: Damned Drag Prove Type: Damned Drag Prove Type: Damned Drag Prove Type: Damned Drag Prove Type: Damned Drag Type: Damned Drag Ty	path 🎗 🖞	sul -4s4o1o1op 9 9 1p	, 1β , εφ , εφ , 3γ	1004
Peperber Barter Peperber Barter Proc. Office Proc. Off	Turner Dismond Dates			100
Peette 0.4mm Trg. Offset: 2 Soved 2	Type: Diamond Drag	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	Er	ngraver 1
beth: 0.4mm rg. Officie Speed 2 Speed 2 Gearance:	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	•		
g. Offet: Seed 2 Seed 2 Seed 7 Zeance: 2 Deed Time: NAAGIC *** Detect: *** Detect: *** Detect: *** Detect: *** Potent: *** Detect: *** Potent: *** Po	Depth: 0.4mm		Click the button	n above to start
ad Hill Shape ★ Line Thick Default ↓ 10 ↔ 10 ↔ 10 ↔ 10 ↔ 10 ↔ 10 ↔ 10 ↔ 10	The second	I supervise the second seco	engraving or cu	itting.
Seed Z Seed C S	g. Offset:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Seed 2 Speed 7 Cearance: The Thice Default v the Thick Default v the		0		
Speed 2 Speed 2 Chance: DSmm ↓ Comm				0
Refresh 2 Over Trace	Speed Z Speed Z Clearance:			(101)
mm v Zemm v Zovel Tme: WA → Engrave Contact Postant x 15.58mm → Ster x 30.54mm → Y 7.20mm → V 2.05mm → V 3.61mm → Ster x 30.54mm → V 2.05mm → V 2.05m	0.5mm	🔹 📲 a na malana na malana na malana na malana na kalina na malana kalina		Refresh
Zowei Trace Postora X: 15.48m Y: 3.64m MANGER Postora X: 15.48m Y: 3.64m MANGER Postora X: 15.48m Y: 3.64m MANGER Postora X: 15.48m Y: 2.46m MANGER Postora X: 15.48m Y: 2.46m MANGER Postora X: 15.48m NAGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER MANGER	nm/s 24mm/s	The set was and the set was the set was been as a set was a set was a set of the set of		
MA → Property Control of the property of the	Z Dwell Time:			⊠ Camera Or
Detect Postor X: 15.48m → Y: 3.60m → Y: 3.60m → Y: 3.60m → Y: 3.60m → Y: 3.60m → Y: 7.20m → Y	N/A v			AF
engree no and Size Poston X: 1548mm ● Y: 3.61mm ● Size X: 30.94mm ● V: 3.61mm ● Ckee Plato Meter Plat				
De Engrave Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Trace Tra		■ • • • • • • • • • • • • ■ \ • / ■ • / \ • / \ • / • • / • • / • • / • •		
ion and Size Poston X: 15.48mm Size X: 30.94mm X: 7, 3.61mm X: 7, 2.21mm X: 7,				
on and Size Poston X: 15.48mm ÷ Y: 3.60mm ÷ Y: 3.60mm ÷ Y: 7.20mm ÷ Y: 7.20mm ÷ Y: 7.20mm ÷ X: 60 mm ÷ Norm ÷	Engrave			
ion and Size	Twice			
on and Size A Postcon X: 15.48mm A Y: 15.48mm B Y: 2.60mm B Y: 2.60mm B W: Y: 2.10mm B U: Y: 2.10mm B D: B B D: D: D B D: D: D B D: D D D: D D D: D D D: D D			4	Detect
Poston X: 15.48mm Y FRer Y 3.61mm See X: 30.94mm Y FRer Y FRER	ion and Size 🏾 🔦			
Poston X: 15.4mm : Y: 3.61mm : H: Y: 7.21mm : Y: 7.21mm : Keep Rato md Fill Shape * Line Thick Default · Line Thick Default · H: Y: D: Shape * H: Shape *		I serve a server server concerns and an particular for the server server and		Filter
N Y: 3.61mm ÷ See X: 30.94mm ÷ W Y: 7.21mm ÷ W Keep Rato * Mail Bhape * Line Thick: Default * W * Mail W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * W * <td>Position X: -15.48mm</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	Position X: -15.48mm			
se x; 30.94mm ; y; 7.21mm ; y; 7.21mm ; ht Fill Shape * Line Thick Default > Keep Rato Market Park + Market Park + Mar	N	1		
See X: 30.94mm Y: 7.21mm X Keep Rato and Hi Shape A Line Thick Default	Y: -5.01mm	9	and a more while while all a similar more handle	
See x: 30.94mm + W: 7.21mm + Weep Rato and Fill Shape A De Thoic Default Weep Call A De Thoic Default A De Thoic Default				
Image: Weight of the state	Size X; 30.94mm		and the side the side statistical the	
V Line Thick Default	+	• A set the set of		
	Y: 7.21mm			
nd Fill Shape	Keep Ratio			
and Fill Shape *				
and Fill Shape	1		net and the first that to accelerate	
	and Fill Shape ×	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	a design and a design a second as	
		124 Construction of the test of tes		>
	Line Thick: Default	v 🗋 <	> 📄 🕅 Device 🝣	Layer
			(-15.48mm, -3.61mm) [30.94mm x 7.21mm]	NUM

On the NC output window, select a measuring method and other options, then click "Start Engraving" button to start transferring the toolpath data to the selected machine.

Toolpath Order:	*	Surface Height Measurement	Material Surface	MAGIC
		Adjust Engraving Position	Move to Vise Automatically	Start Engraving Cancel

Toolpath order		The toolpaths are put in order if two or more toolpaths are selected for engraving. The order can be modified by clicking [Up]/[Down] button on the right.
Surface height	Surface height	Measures material height only.
measurement	Skip	Skips material's height measurement and allows the use of the previous height measurement data if the material has not been removed from the clamp during the previous engraving process.

Horizontal slope Vertical slope		Measures material's horizontal gradient.
		Measures material's vertical gradient.
	Surface slope	Measures material's top, bottom, left and right gradient.
	Flat	Engraves flat-surfaced materials.
Material surface	Uneven	Engraves curve-surfaced materials.
Multiple engraving		Engraves materials repeatedly in constant vertical/horizontal intervals. *A vise is used for this automatic engraving and available for separate purchase.
Simulate en	graving	Displays engraving simulation on the material by using laser pointer to ensure that it follows a correct path.
Adjust engraving position		Select this option to re-adjust the engraving location. The laser pointer then adjusts to the engraving location before engraving. If this option is not selected, engraving process will initialize immediately.
Move to vise automatically		Move automatically to the flat or rotating vise based on the selected template.
Touch-Mark-Free Measurement		Prevents height measurement points from leaving any marks.
Turn on External Device		Enables automatic external device operation.

***** "NC output" window when selecting ring template.

NC Output			*
Toolpath Order:	Surface Height Measurement	Outside/Inside Pinger © Outside © —	MAGIC
	Multi Point Measurement		Simulate Engraving
	Adjust Engraving Position	Move to Vise Automatically	Start Engraving Cancel

Surface height	Measures material height.	
Multi-point- measurement	Measures material height by dividing the whole material into several parts (up to 5 times)	
Outside	Engraves the outside of the ring.	
Inside	Engraves the inside of the ring.	
-	Place the material on the flat chuck finger.	
	Place the material on the round chuck finger	

(2) Transfer the Toolpath Data after Entering Text

Transfer the text data to the engraving machine without creating a toolpath. After creating a text design, click

TE M	agicEngrave - [Flat : Page1*]		J	-
Elle	Edit View Insert Toolgath Text	Transform Layout Iool Window Help		
SVG) 🔽 TÎ • 🖉 • 🦾 🗛 🕫 🖾 🔙 🗖 • 🗖	· 0 · A // 8
Obje	ct Property 9	Flat : Page1*	4 b x	Device
Fon	8 '	W 10	9 9 ¹ P ¹ P	1778
For	t: Arial V Preview	- 20mm × 20mm (Circle)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Engraver 1
Siz	e: 19 🗸 🖌 🖌			Cick the butter shows to st
*	B/ <u>U</u> ⊺ T			engraving or cutting.
MA	GIC			
	>	*		C
				(0)
Tex	Alignment	• · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Hor	z.Align: 🗾 🔄 🔛 Orient.:			AF
Ver	t.Align: 📃 🗎 🖬 🎞 🎫 💷			
	Move X: 0%			
	Move Y: 0%			
14/64	the Office Angles Orden			Detect
	Text or		- <u>/</u>	Y Filter
Spa	:e: •••• • Space: •••			
Posi	tion and Size			
	Basitian Vi 9 48mm			
	v: -2.22mm			
	Size X: 18.98mm			
	+			

(3) Camera

Enable the camera function.

BB-S7 has a built-in camera used for viewing the marking area. The camera captures the actual image of the material being engraved then sends the image data to the software along with the material's size and location, allowing users to design, position and adjust the size of their design directly on the material while viewing the camera.

[Camera positioning system specifications]

- -Filming area: 90mm x 70mm
- -Filming target: flat surface engraving (not available for rotary engraving)
- -Camera resolution: 1600 x 1200

-Precision: 0.2mm (*Precision is a calculated number. The actual precision is affected by calibration.)





Refresh	Refresh the camera image displayed in the MagicEngrave Program.
Camera On	Enable/Disable the camera function. When [Camera on], auto positioning is activated.
AF	See 8. Auto Focus for details.

Image Adjustment	Set the camera image options such as contrast, grayscale etc.
Camera Viewer	View the camera image in a new window. Camera Viewer Contrast Gamma 1
Auto Focusing Sensor	Set the camera image displayed in the MagicEngrave Program (with maximum size restriction).
Auto Renewal Frequency	Set the timer the camera image auto displays in the program. Timer: 5 ~ 30 seconds
Camera Selection	Select a camera device. If there are multiple camera devices connected to your PC, the camera for laser is automatically set by default or, select the device manually.

8. Auto Focus

BB-S7 has built-in auto focusing systems that enable auto focusing on materials to be marked with a material height detection camera.



*Click the [AF] button to enable the camera auto-positioning function.

*Refocusing is required upon changing the material.

*Features become available once MagicEngrave program is enabled.

1. Click [AF] on the program.



- 1 Clamp moves to the center.
- ② Measure the height of the material
- 3 Tool moves to the right end of the machine
- ④ Software updates the camera image

2. Press the [AF] button on BB-S7 operation buttons then click the [Refresh] button on the program to refresh the camera display.



Marking Process



1. Measure the size and height of your material.



2. Place your material at the center of the clamp.



3. Select a template that matches the shape or type of your material from the template category. Enter the size of your material then click "OK" button.



Maintain original size	The actual size of the registered template is loaded; not the size	ze entered.
Locate to original position	The template is loaded to where it was initially created. selected, the template is loaded at the center of work area.	If this option is
Fit page size to template	The size of the page is adjusted to the size of the template.	

4. The selected template will appear on the screen. Click [Text input] button then click at any target

MagicEngrave - [Design1 : Page1*]		- ,
Eile Edit View Insert Toolgath	egt Transform Layout Tool Window Help	
		🖉 • 🌊 🌆 ace 🖾 🐟 🚍 🗖 • 🗖 • 🗖 • 🤱 🔑
Object Property	Design1 : Page1*	4 ▷ × Device
Font	(a) ³ / ₂ ,	, φ , , , 1ρ , , , 1ρ , , , 2ρ
Font: Arial V Preview	20mm × 20mm (Circle)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	<u>e</u>	Engraver 1
Size: 19 V A A		Click the button above ?
★ B/ <u>U</u> TT	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	englaving of cotting.
MAGIC	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
× [
Text Alignment	*	
Horz.Align: 📑 🗮 🔛 🎦 Orient.:	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Vert.Align: 📃 🗏 🔲 🎞 🟥 📖		
Mayo Y- 0%	П П Л Л Л	
Ai Mara Yr 0%		
		Fiter
Width: 0% 🗘 Angle: 0deg 🔶		
Line 0% Text 0%	-	'
Space: Space: •	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	9	
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

5. Once the text is completed, click 🔀 [Selection] button on toolbar. Enable the object selection mode to select

the entered text then modify the size, font and thickness of the object. Lastly, click [Center in page] button to position the object at the center of the work area.

MagicEngrave - [Design1 : Page1*]	- o x
Elle Edit View Insert Toolgath Text Transform Layout Tool Window Help	_ & ×
@ / ○ □ ○ 飄 • 囲 ① 🍙 🖻 5 • 醌 • 車 🖻 🛱 • 🖽 🔀 I	[• 🖉 • 🔔 🛤 💵 🖾 🌨 🖻 • 🗖 • 🗖 • 🤱 🌽 😒 🕕 🛽
Object Property	d ▷ 🗙 🗄 Device
Font	
Font: Arial V Preview 20mm × 20mm (Circle)	Engraver 1
Size: 13 X A A	
	Click the button above to start engraving or cutting.
MAGIC > 1	
Text Allerment	Refresh 🗾
	Camera On
	AF
A Move Y: 0%	• Detect
Width: 0% • Angle: 0deg • - · · · · · · · · ·	
Line 0% Text 0% A	
opace. O space.	
Position and Size	prapt
Dealing V. 6.40mm	
Poston X: 10.75mm • 9-	
Y: -1.32mm	
	> M Device 📚 Layer

6. Upon completing the design, click [Hatching toolpath].

*Click

đ

icon on the top right of the screen for immediate marking without creating a Toolpath.



7. Select an engraving option and tool from "Hatching Toolpath" window and if necessary, designate gap and depth before clicking "Create Toolpath" button.

Hatching Toolpath			Х
MAGIC			Target Objects:
Diamond Tip Endmil Cutter [0.5mm] Endmil Cutter [0.5mm] Endmil Cutter [0.5mm] Endmil Cutter [0.7mm] Endmil Cutter [0.7mm] Endmil Cutter [0.7mm] Standard Finishing Cutter Standard Roughing Cutter (1	Preset: Edit Diamond Tip Hatching (Closs) Diamond Tip Hatching [Narrow]	Direction:	MAGIC
Option Depth: Z Pitch 0.4mm	Speed	Z Clearance:	Transmit
Hatching Gap: 0.1mm	24mm/s 24mm/s	Z Dwell Time:	Create Toolpath
Engrave Outline Engrave Twice	Fast Fast	Toolpath Quality:	Cancel
-Scan line toolpa	th-	-Hatching toolp	oath-

(i) Notice

For better engraving quality on large areas (e.g., large fonts or images) use "Scan line toolpath." Although this may require more time to process.

8. Toolpath object is created.



10. Once "NC Output" window appears, specify how the engraving material is measured then click "Start Engraving" button.

NC Output			×
Toolpath Order:	Surface Height Measurement	Material Surface	MAGIC
	O Vertical Slope O Surface Slope		Multiple Engraving
			Start Engraving
	Adjust Engraving Position	Move to Vise Automatically	
			Cancel

11. Once the tool is positioned to the center of the material and the laser pointer turns on, use the direction key buttons to position the laser pointer to the engraving area. The area that the laser pointer points to is where the actual engraving takes place.

Press the direction key buttons to move the laser pointer to the left, top, right and bottom areas of the engraving area. (Long press to move the laser pointer farther). Check if the laser pointer points to the area on the material where you want to engrave. If the laser pointer is out of range, adjust the position using the direction keys.	
The laser pointer automatically points to the area where the engraving takes place (based on the target location on the work area). When the direction key is pressed, the laser pointer moves to the area to be engraved (left, top, right or bottom) from its target location. If the engraving area needs to be adjusted to the left, press key to move the pointer to the left.	

12. After positioning the laser pointer and determining the location of the engraving area, long-press and hold

button (for more than 3 seconds) until it beeps to confirm that the machine is ready to engrave then close the cover.

Ring Inner/Outer Marking Process



1. Measure the width and diameter of the ring.





<Outer marking – Ring outside size>

<Inner marking – Ring inside size>

2. Insert the ring into the chuck finger (as shown below) then tighten the rotation clamp to firmly secure the ring.



[Ring outer engraving]



[Ring inner engraving]





[Engraving direction]

The direction of the characters to be engraved on the ring is shown in the picture below. Check the target location (where you want your characters to be engraved on the ring) then firmly secure the ring.



3. Double click "Ring" template in the object property window. When [Insert Rotary Object Template] window appears, select one engraving option: outside or inside. Then enter the width and diameter of the ring and click "OK."

	Design1 : Page	e1*		4 b x	Device
olates		น้ำมีน้ำสืบสีนักสีนกสีนกสีนก	Ամենմեննեններին հետևուներինունեններ։	մեսքեսքեսքեսքեսքեսքեսքեսքեսքեսքես ^	E
ledal	× 101				Engraver 1
BC S	Ring Template				× k the button above to start graving or cutting.
Flit Ring ABC AFGC AFGC AFGC AFGC AFGC AFGC AFGC AFG	20 Cr ABC →	Outside Outside O Inside Finger O		Dameter:	Detect 7 FRer
	i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i			OK Cancel	

4. The template will appear at the center of the screen. Select _____ [Text Input] on the toolbar then click at any target area on the work area to enter the text to be engraved.

MagicEngrave - [Ring : Page1*]			×
Elle Edit View Insert Toolpath Tegt Tjansform Layout Tool Window Help			- 8 ×
◙ ╱◯◯◯▓・▦⋈◀©≬⊆\ऽ੶ਛ੶ष॒ख़ख़॓•`;;;\> <mark>™</mark> ↓₽₽₽₽	· 🗖 · 👌	128	#
Object Property P Ring : Page1* 4 b >	Device		
Font (*) (*********************************	1	271	Des
Font: Arial Preview D:20mm W:10mm		Second L	g ng
		Crigraver 1	due
	Click the butt engraving or	ton above to start cutting.	
			- Mint
		(1)	2
Text Alignment		Refresh	1
		Camera (Dn 🖥
		AF .	- old
			ġ.
MAGIC	64	Datact	1 2
Move Y: 096	7	Detect	Data
	<u>Y</u>	Fiter	Bind
Width: 10% a Angle: 10eg			 India
Lino 0% A Text 0% A			Ω
			gille
24			Aude
			Fond
34			~
1	<	>	
	Device 4	🗢 Layer	
[] [] 🖿 🖬 🖬 🔏 [] ¶ / ¶ ♥, ♥, Et to page Lio, ♥, □Q ♡			
Ready		CAP NUM	4

5. After entering the text, click [Selection] on the toolbar to enter the object selection mode. Select the text,

then edit its size and font. To place the text at the center of the work area, click [Center in Page] button.



?

What is Handle for adjusting gaps between characters?
Handle for adjusting gaps between characters is a function that adjusts gaps between characters
by dragging characters to target positions.

6. Upon completing the design, click E [Hatching Toolpath] button.

*Click

E

button on the top right of the screen for immediate marking without creating a Toolpath.



7. The "Hatching Toolpath" window will appear (as shown in the picture below). Select the tool, toolpath gap and depth then click "Create Toolpath" button.

Hatching Toolpath			×
MAGIC			Target Objects:
Tool: Edit Demond Tip Endmil Cutter [0.4mm] Endmil Cutter [0.5mm] Endmil Cutter [0.5mm] Endmil Cutter [0.7mm] Endmil Cutter [0.7mm] Endmil Cutter [0.8mm] Standard Finishing Cutter Standard Roughing Cutter (1 V-Cutter	Preset: Edit Diamond Tip Hatching Diamond Tip Hatching [Cross] Diamond Tip Hatching [Narrow]	Direction:	magic
Option Depth: D.4mm	Speed XY Speed: Z Speed: 24mm/s	Z Clearance: 0.5mm v 2 Dwell Time:	Transmit
Image: Internet of the second of the seco	Fast Fast	N/A V Toolpath Quality: Normal V	Create Toolpath Cancel

8. The "Toolpath" object is created with red lines marked or filled on each text (as shown in the picture below). Scroll up the mouse wheel to zoom in the image of the toolpath object to check the line style. You may delete the toolpath object and create a new one if the toolpath is not your preferred style.



button.

9. After selecting your preferred toolpath, click



10. Once "NC Output" window appears, specify how the engraving material is measured then click "Start Engraving" button.

NC Output					
Toolpath Order:	•	Surface Height Measurement	Outside/Inside	Finger • •	magic
-	4	Multi Point Measurement			Simulate Engraving
		Adjust Engraving Position	Move to Vise	Automatically emal Device	Start Engraving Cancel

Surface height	Measure material height.
Multi point measurement	Measure material height by dividing the whole material into several parts (up to 5 times)
Outside	Engrave on the ring's ring outer diameter.
Inside	Engrave on the ring's ring inner diameter.
-	Place the material on the flat chuck finger.
	Place the material on the round chuck finger

11. Once the tool is positioned to the center of the material and the laser pointer turns on, use the direction key buttons to position the laser pointer to the engraving area. The area that the laser pointer points to is where the actual engraving takes place.



12. After positioning the laser pointer and determining the location of the engraving area, long-press and hold

button (for more than 3 seconds) until it beeps to confirm that the machine is ready to engrave then close the cover.

Photo Marking





What is Photo Marking? Photo marking is a marking method that marks the shade of an image with dots.

1. Place the material on the clamp.

2. Click		[Image] to import an	image for marking.
🕅 Open			×
Look in:	Sample	v 🗿 🗊 💷	•
Quick access	1		
Desktop The Contract of Contra	BOY.jp	9	
This PC	<		>
Network	File name:		~ Open
INELWOIK	Files of type:	All Supported Images	✓ Cancel
	,		

3. Adjust the size and location of the image.

MagicEngrave - [Design1 : Page1*]		
Eile Edit View Insert Toolgath Text	Transform Layout Icol Window Help	_ @ ×
	▦ऻ淋෮ֿ◬៤५५੶।ਫ਼੶੶ਫ਼ਫ਼ਲ਼੶:::: 🔯 ॻॖ ੶!҂ ੶ ҂! ▱ ∞ ⊠ �! <i>₽।₫੶ ≣</i>	· 🗆 · A 🌽 😂 🖶 🛛
Object Property	P Design1 : Page1* 4 b x	Device
Templates	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Des
A Madal		9
- I HEURI	142	Engraver 1
		Click the button above to start
ABC CO		engraving or cutting.
		Str
Fac King Pell		nbol
ARC ARGAS		(e) _
		Refresh
Cylinder Embossing Orcle		Camera On
		AF Do
		er
Damond Heart Rectangle		fa Datast
Control Charles Checonges		-y Detect Dat
		Filter
		ding
		Call
		grap
		The second se
		onts
	4.14 1	• -
		< >
		Device Stayer
	Fit to page VIA (A) (Q)	
Ready	(49.97mm, -39.37mm)	CAP NUM

4. [Clipping Mask] feature enables clipping or cropping of the target image. Drag the mouse over the image then create a shape.



5. Drag and hold the mouse to select the target image or select [Menu] \rightarrow [Edit] \rightarrow [Select All].



6. Then select [Menu] \rightarrow [Transform] \rightarrow [Make Clipping Mask]. Only the cropped image (target image) remains.





The original image is saved; not deleted or cropped out.

7. Click // [Photo Impact Engraving Toolpath] button.

*Click

EJ

button on the top right of the screen for immediate marking without creating a Toolpath.



8. Adjust marking options in photo marking option window.



* The black area is not engraved; only the cropped image.



During photo marking process, the brighter area (white area) of an image is not visibly expressed with dots unlike the darker area where dots are highly visible with higher marking quality. Therefore, it is recommended to adjust the brightness of an image to darker. Normally, a dot ratio of 10-20% provides the best marking quality for a portrait. Take note that the image's optimal conditions vary depending on the brightness of background of the image. Check image preview then adjust the image's brightness and dot ratio. If 'image adjustment' is confusing, click "Recommend the best" button to automatically adjust the image.

J

9. Click "OK" button to create a toolpath for photo marking. Set the laser marking option then click [Engraver] button.





During marking process, the white area of the image appears with dots. The image result of the toolpath is shown as a negative image.

10. Once the tool is positioned to the center of the material and the laser pointer turns on, use the direction key buttons to position the laser pointer to the engraving area. The area that the laser pointer points to is where the actual engraving takes place.

Press the direction key buttons to move the laser pointer to the left, top, right and bottom areas of the engraving area. (Long press to move the laser pointer farther). Check if the laser pointer points to the area on the material where you want to engrave. If the laser pointer is out of range, adjust the position using the direction keys.
The laser pointer automatically points to the area where the engraving takes place (based on the target location on the work area). When the direction key is pressed, the laser pointer moves to the area to be engraved (left, top, right or bottom) from its target location. If the engraving area needs to be adjusted to the left, press key to move the pointer to the left.

11. After positioning the laser pointer and determining the location of the engraving area, long-press and hold

button (for more than 3 seconds) until it beeps to confirm that the machine is ready to engrave then close the cover.

Pen Engraving Process



-Tailstock is sold separately.

1. Measure the width and diameter of the pen.



2. Secure the pen to the engraver by using a pen clamp.





The pen jig may differ depending on model types. The instructions are almost the same for all types of engravers regardless of the type of jig used. Be sure to follow the instructions below to determine the correct positioning of the pen when engraving.



3. Select a pen template in the object property window. Enter the width and diameter of the pen then click "OK" button.



4. Once the template appears, click Γ [Text Input] on the toolbar. Click the work area then enter text.

Elle Edit View Insert Toolgath Text Transform Layout Iool Window Help	_ 6 ×
@\/○□○ ▓・\▦ ⋈@☆⊾\∿・ ፼+@@☆・`@ \` ∏ • <i>∦-\∠\∞∞</i> ∞ ∞ ▲ <u>@</u> •₽	🖬 • 🗖 • A 🛛 🌽 😂 🖶 🖡
Object Property 7 Pen : Page1* 4 b	X Device
Font 🔹 🔯	P
Font: Arial V Preview R ABC D:10mm W:100mm	Engraver 1
Sze: 33 V A A	mple
	engraving or cutting.
MAGIC	S
	mbo
Text Alignment R	Refresh 2
Horz,Algn: 🔳 🔲 🖬 Orient.:	AF
	liorer
	47 Detect
	ע Filter שׂ
Width: 0% * Angle: 0deg *	h
Charler 016 a Tata 016 a Concernante 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
	Callig
4	raph
	Fon
	× 12
	v < >
, ,	Device 🗢 Layer
🗋 🗀 📷 🛤 🔏 🛸 🐪 🔊 🥟 🗉 🔍 🔍 [Fit to page 🔷 La, 🕲 🔍	
Ready	CAP NUM

5. After entering the text, click [Selection] on the toolbar to enter object selection mode, then adjust the

size and font of the text. Click

[Center in Page] button to place the object at the center of the work area.

Elle Edit View Insert Toolgath Text Transform Layout Iool Window Help	_ # ×
☆ / ○ □ ○ 譏・ 田 � □ ☆ ┣ ᅐ + 嚚 + 申 - ⊉ + 健 🔽 ¤ + ∠ # ** ☎ ▲ ⊡ + □	• 🗖 • A 🖊 😂 🖶 🛽
Object Property Pen: Page1*	Device
Font	/T
Font: Arial V Preview ALC D:10mm W:100mm	Engraver 1 9
State 33 V A A	
	Click the button above to start engraving or cutting.
PROL > 27	Symb
	(in) (in) (in) (in) (in) (in) (in) (in)
Test & Formant	Refresh
	Camera On
	AF plo
	Inter
	f
Move Y: 0%	T Detect
	Y Filter
Width: 0% 🗘 Angle: 0deg 😳	aing
Position and Size	aphy
Poston X: -66.48mm	Fon
Y 3.86mm	~ <u>s</u>
	< >
Size X: 32.97mm + v 2	M Device 🗢 Layer
🗋 🗀 🖬 🛤 🔧 🗞 😭 🔦 🥂 // 🔍 🔍 Fit to page 🗸 + 🤯 🛞 💭 🖑	
Ready (-66.48mm, -3.86mm) [32.97mm x 7.7	Imm] CAP NUM

6. Upon completing the design, click

[Hatching Tool path].

*Click

button on the top right of the screen for immediate marking without creating a Toolpath.

Elle Edit View insert Toolgath Tegt Transform Layout Tool Window Help	- 8 ×
劒 / ○ □ ○ 鬷・田 № ① 🛕 🕒 ∿・屋・回 🗗 壺・ 🖽 🖾 耳・/・/ 🛤 🖾 ▲ 🙆 🗖	• 🗗 · A / 🖉 🕀 🖡
Object Property Pen: Page1*	: Device
Font (*) ^ [19]	Pai Des
Font Arial V Preview R ABC D:10mm W:100mm	Engraver 1
Ster 33	and a second sec
	click the button above to start engraving or cutting.
MAGIC A	5
	mbo
	(e) [_
Text Alignment	Refresh
Horz,Algo: 📰 🔄 🖬 Orient:	AF
	dorer
	+ Detect
	Filter 🛱
Width: 0% + Angle: 0deg +	ding
	allig
Position and Size a mathematical sectors and sectors a	aphy
Poston X: 66.48mm	Font
X Y: 3.86mm	×
	Device Stayer

7. Select engraving option and tool from the "Hatching Toolpath" window. If necessary, designate the hatching gap and depth then click "Create Toolpath" button.



8. "Toolpath" object is created.





10. Once "NC Output" window appears, specify how the engraving material is measured then click "Start Engraving" button.

NC Output				×
Toopath Order:		Surface Height Measurement	Outside/Inside	MAGIC
	♠	O Horizontal Slope OHorizontal Slope Multi Point Measurement		Simulate Engraving
		Adjust Engraving Position	Move to Vise Automatically	Start Engraving Cancel

11. Once the tool is positioned to the center of the material and the laser pointer turns on, use the direction key buttons to position the laser pointer to the engraving area. The area that the laser pointer points to is where the actual engraving takes place.

Press the direction key buttons to move the laser pointer to the left, top, right and bottom areas of the engraving area. (Long press to move the laser pointer farther). Check if the laser pointer points to the area on the material where you want to engrave. If the laser pointer is out of range, adjust the position using the direction keys.
The laser pointer automatically points to the area where the engraving takes place (based on the target location on the work area). When the direction key is pressed, the laser pointer moves to the area to be engraved (left, top, right or bottom) from its target location. If the engraving area needs to be adjusted to the left, press key to move the pointer to the left.

12. After positioning the laser pointer and determining the location of the engraving area, long-press and hold

button (for more than 3 seconds) until it beeps to confirm that the machine is ready to engrave then close the cover.

Engraving Curved Materials

Scratch on the surface of a curved material is likely to be caused by the tool touching the surface of the material when it moves. This can be avoided by entering the thickness of the material's surface to set the Z-movement height automatically.

1. Create a toolpath then click

but

n then click 🗆	button.			
MagicEngrave - [Flat : Page1*]				- 0
Eile Edit View Insert Toolgath Teg	Tgansform Layout Icol Window Help			
	目は((▲」)、「鹿」山田空 🖽 🔽 🖉 🦾 🛲 🖾 🕭		- 17 - 8	128
bject Property	Flat : Page1*	4 Þ 🛪	Device	
oolpath *	^ 🔊 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · Ψ.		6724
Type: Diamond Drag	- 20mm x 20mm (Circle)	· · · · · · · ^		1.58
¥	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			Engraver 1
Depth: 0.4mm			Click the butt	ton above to start
Org. Offset: Z Pitch			engraving or	cuccing.
VA 🗸 📩				
				(m)
Y Speed Z Speed Z Clearance:				Refresh
4mm/s 24mm/s 0.5mm V				
2 Dwei Time:				AF .
Engrave		04 1993) P		
TWO			10	
ition and Size			*7	Detect
			8	Filter
Postion X: -9.47mm	·····			
Y; -2.21mm				
Ema Vi 18 94mm				
Ci Kasa Patia				
CT Keep Mark				
e and Fill Shape				
			<	>
Line Thick: Default	v [] <	>	Device 4	🗢 Layer
	n 🔍 🔍 561% 🔹 🖓 🔍 🖑			
	(-9.47mm, -2.21m	m) [18.94mm x 4.41r	mm]	NUM

2. Once "NC Output" window appears, click "Uneven" to see different kinds of curved materials. Select a shape that resembles the shape of the material then enter its thickness (the thickness of the area to which the engraving is applied) then click "Start Engraving" button.

NC Output			×
Toolpath Order:	Surface Height Measurement	Material Surface	MAGIC
		Depth: 1.0mm OUp ODown	Multiple Engraving
	Adjust Engraving Position	Move to Vise Automatically	Start Engraving Cancel
Ο		Enter part to	the thickness of the be engraved.
X			

Layout of Text in a Circle

Texts can be arranged around a circle by using circular text object.



[Circular Text]

Click *Click* button to display "Circular Text" window. Assign a direction and an angle, enter the text and size, then click "OK" button.

Circular Text X		
Adds circular layout text. Fill the options below.	GRAVING O	W CIGAN
Direction and Angle		0 0
90" Start Angle: 360 ÷	Le L	ANNA A
180°	SCRENGPAUR OF	WARGNE OCH
Size		N, A
	a second and a second	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Width: 24mm Show Boundary Circle Height: 24mm Thickness: 0.5mm		
Contents		<u> 2</u> 0
Contents: MAGIC ENGRAVING	MARNE CLO	CENGRA ^{SE}
OK Cancel		



Circular Text (Top/Bottom)	×	
Adds circular layout text. Fill the options below	w.	
Outside Circle Size	Inside Circle Size	
Width: 24mm	Width: 14.4mm	
Height: 24mm	Height: 14.4mm	
		-NION
Thickness: 0.5mm	Thickness: 0.3mm	CENCRA
	`	A 19
Contents		(S) (S)
Top: MAGIC EI	NGRAVING	
Bottom: LASER M	ARKING	
		SA ST
		SP MART
	OK Cancel	A TALL SAL

[Adjusting layout angle]

Drag the first character [R] or last character [y] in the text to adjust the angle of the layout.



Drag other characters with the mouse to adjust the distance to the center of the circle.



Layout of Text in a Curve

1. Click the [Line/Curve] button.

2. Left-click to display the dotted lines then designate a distance. Drag the mouse to make a curve appear then right-click to create one.



3. Select "No Line" on the "Line and Fill Shape" window on the object property window.



4. Click T [Text Input] button then move the mouse cursor to the curve line. The cursor will change to text cursor as shown below.



5. When the cursor changes to text, click the curve line then enter the text.



Text Change

The content of a text can be changed by using [Text Change] feature.

Open a saved design sample, file or select the text objects entered on the work area. Click \square [Text change] button or right-click with the mouse then select [Text Change] on the menu. Or, select [Menu] \rightarrow [Text] \rightarrow [Text change].

>



Change the content in the "Text Change" window then click "OK" button. The modified text will be shown on the screen.



Template Creation

Template is an image that corresponds to the material to be engraved by 1:1 ratio. Load a template similar to the shape of the material to be engraved then enter the text. This allows you to easily and conveniently position your text and determine its size. Templates such as circle, heart, square and diamond are available in the program, and users can freely add more templates. Templates can be created by using graphic programs like Illustrator, Photoshop and CorelDraw, or by loading images in SVG file format, jpeg, bmp, png, etc.

[Creating template #1]

1. Select [Menu] \rightarrow [Template] \rightarrow [Create Template from Image].

MagicEngrave - [Design1 : Page1*]			- 🗆 ×
Eile Edit View Insert Toolgath	Te <u>x</u> t T <u>r</u> ansform <u>L</u> ayou		_ 8 ×
	. HEIDA COM	Template	· /7 · A // 😪 🛱 🛾
Chiest Property	B Desired (D	Transmit NC Data Save Selected Objects as Template	
Templates	* Design1 : P.	Run NC Spooler	
😋 Medal	~ 2	Machine Information	Engraver 1
ABC S	Built aftail	Option	Click the button above to start engraving or cutting.
ABC	181.181.1		Refresh
Diamond Heart Rectar		mplate	, piorer Li Data bin
	u.B.añan.B.añan.B.añan.B.aña		Filter Filter
			Device 📚 Layer
1 🖸 🗁 📫 1 🗰 1 🗶 🔒 📬 Ready		it to page ・ にん (A) (ロード) (-22.42mm58.68mm)	NUM

2. "Create Template from Image" window will appear.

Create Template from Image	X
Load a template image and designate size of the template.	
	Size
	Width: 80mm
	Height: 100mm
Load Image	
	Save
	Location to save; Medal File Name;
	OK Cancel
3. Select the image file (jpeg, bmp, png and etc.) from the "Open" window then click "Open" button.

Open			>
Look in:	Sample	 Image: Image: Ima	
*			
Quick access			
	newmo		
Desktop	newino		
-			
Libraries			
This PC			
1	<		
Network	File name:	All C	✓ Open
	Thes of type.	Open as read-only	Calico
			3

4. Enter the size of the template. Check "Save" to save the image as a template for later use then enter the file name. Click "OK" button to load the image as a template. The image will be saved as a template in the template library.

Create Template	e from Image	×
Load a templa	ate image and designate size of the template.	
		Load Image
		Size
		Width: 80mm
		Height: 25
		Save
		Location to save: Medal
		File Name:
		new moon
		OK Cancel
MagicEngrave - [Design1 : Page1*]		
Eile Edit View Insert Toolgath Text	Transform Layout Iool Window Help	
		🛐 II. • 🖉 • 🚄 AB AG 🔛 🜨 🕀 • 🛄 •
Templates	Design1 : Page1* 101	ب × ۹ ۵ ۱۹. ۱۹. ۱۹. ۱۹. ۱۹. ۱۹. ۱۹. ۱۹. ۱۹. ۱۹.
G Medal		^
		Ċ
ABC ABC		*
Flat Ring Pen	1977 1977	
ABC SIGUR		
Cylinder Embossing Circle		
Die Carving		
Heart Rectangle	4	
Control (rectarigite)		
new moon		
		Γ

[Creating template #2]

1. Click [Image] button to open an image file.



2. Select [Menu] \rightarrow [Template] \rightarrow [Save Selected Object as Template]. Enter a new template name in "Input" window then click "OK" button.

MagicEngrave - (Design1 : Page1*)		- 🗉 ×		
Elle Edit View Insert Toolgath Tegt Transform Layou Tool Window Ellep Template Object Property 9 Designt : P	Create Template from image Save Selected Objects as Template	-* + 8 🖶		
Image R Numitive file with a select Language File Path: Image R CitWisensWRNTWWDesktop Image R Transparent Image R Convert >> Thickness: Image Edit Image R Position and Size R	Altribuitzen struden ist uiten iten iten iten iten iten iten iten	ver 1 ove to start g. Refresh		
Poston X:		Camera On AF		
Tool		î		
* Template 🕨 🕨	* Create Template from Image			
Transmit NC Data	* Save Selected Objects as Template			
🕒 🗋 🖶 😹 🖫 😭 🔦 🎢 🕀 🔍 Fit to page 🔹 🖏 🕲 🤤	(-4.43mm,-5.94mm) [16.86mm x 11.89mm]	CAP NUM		

Input			×
Enter name.			
Car			
	ОК	Cancel	

3. The saved template is added to the template library.

i

Notice

MagicEngrave - [De	sign1 : Page1*j																			
e <u>E</u> dit View J	nsert Tool <u>p</u> at	h Te <u>x</u> t	Transform	Layout	Tool	Window	<u>H</u> elp													
		8 · E		D A		15.		•		÷.			T	. 3	• 4	AE				
ect Property		ą	Desi	on1 : Pao	e1*															
nnlates		*	15 (180.	-7570	-050	05550	454	0353	025	2015	10	-ē9.		1.152	P25	3p 3p	4045.	.5ρ5 <u>β</u>	. 6065	
npiates			3																	
Medal		\sim																		
1	10																			
ABC	140	BC .	12																	· ·
ABC	9		191																	
Flat Ri	ng Pe	n	-35																	· ·
			30.1																	
ABC	BCH.		12																	- I
	-		222																	
vinder Embo	ossing Ca																			- I -
Die C	arving		1																	
			12																	
			192																	
Circle Diam	nond Hei	art	6								,		1. A.							
													1							- I
			No.																	- I
ctangle			24																	
			8																	
			x.																	- I
			8																	
			13																	
			PH2																	- I
			8																	
			\$																	· ·
			8																	
			22																	
			25																	

The saved template in the "Save Selected Object as Template" menu is saved based on the size designated on the screen. When loading a template, check "Maintain Original Size" so the template will be loaded based on the original size designated when the template was saved.

Template Size		×
Select or Input * Template obj "Shift" key will	template size. ect is not selectable. Dragging aroun enable the selection.	d the template object by pressing
Preset: 25,5 × 18		Width: 25.5mm • Height: 18mm • Orininal Size: 25.5mm x 18mm Maintain Original Size Locate at Original Position
×	Fit Page Size to Template	
		OK Cancel

* Templates can be added or deleted. "Add" or "Delete" option can be selected by right-clicking in the template category window.



Saving as Design Sample

Edited texts, contents or designs can be saved as design samples for future use.

[Saving as design sample #1]

1. Edit contents and select the objects.



2. Click File [Menu] \rightarrow [Save as Design Sample] then select a folder or create new folder. Enter the name then click "Save."

Save as Design S	ample		×
Folder: 🗀 H	eart	~	<u> </u>
			Preview
Name:	Sample		
Category:	Heart		Domoo
User:			ROMEO
Company:			
Date created:	2021-10-01		
Description:	1		
			luliot
			JUIICI
			Save Cancel

[Saving as design sample #2]

window to save the created design.

1. Select the objects then click [Design Sample] button. Select a folder from the design sample library

MagicEngrave - [Design1 : Page1*]		
Eile Edit View Insert Toolgath Teg	t Transform Layout Iool <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp	_ 8 >
	田区 🗘 🗋 🕒 🗟 🔛 🖬 🗄 🛱 🖶 🛱 🚺 🔝 🏋 🖉 🖉 🖾 🖾 🖾 🖳	🖸 • 🗖 • 🗖 • 👠 🌽 🛞 🖶
Object Property	Design1 : Page1*	Design Sample 4
Position and Size	 3 L. 180. 131. 130. 181. 180. 181. 180. 181. 180. 181. 181	
Position X: -16.19mm + Y: -15.43mm + - Size X: 32.38mm + + Y: 30.87mm +		Arrow Rng Deco Shape Greek Symbol Heart Logo Polygon Robon
Keep Ratio		
Line and Fill Shape		♥♥♡♥
Line Thick: Default ~	Romeo	Heart1 Heart2 Heart3 Heart4
Line Shape: v		* 🛧 🕹
Line Color: 📕 검정 🗸		Heart5 Heart6 Heart7
Cil Change		
	Juliet	Land Land
Fill Color: 집성 V		
D 🗆 🖬 🖶 🗶 🚡 🛸 🦘	🕐 🔍 🖯 Fit to page 🚽 🖧 🛞 🛄 🖑	
Ready	(-16.19mm, -15.43mm) [32.38mm x 30.87mm] NUM

2. Click Save selected image as sample] or right-click the design sample image then click "Save Selected as Design Sample" on the menu.

- E	<u>T</u> .	• 🔔 ab as	G 🔜 🜨 💻 🖻] • □ • □ • ▲ <u>/</u> + ⊗ [
				Design Sample	-12
-2015105.	.9 <u>5</u> 1p1 <u>p</u> 2	ρ. 25. 3ρ. 35. 4ρ. 4	5 5ρ 55 6ρ 65 7ρ 75	Design Sample	۲
				Arrow Ring	
				Deco Shape	
				Greek Symbol	
				Heart	
				Polygon Pibbon	
				- Ribboll	
				Save Selected as De	sign S
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	🛓 a a a a 💵				
	\sim				
	neo				
				~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	
	•			Open	
	T			Save Selected as Design Sample	
				Delete	
	liet			Delete	
<u>=</u> . vu				Larger Thumbnail	
-				Smaller Thumbnail	
				Custom Thumbnail Size	
					1

3. Enter the name of the design created then click "OK" button. The design will be saved in the design sample library.

Input		×		
Input new sample name.				
Sample				
OK Car	ncel			
			(\mathbf{n})	
			\mathbf{X}	
Heart1 Heart2 Heart2 Heart4				•
Heart1 Heart2 Heart3 Heart4	Heart1	Heart2	Heart3	Heart4
		•		Romeo
			J-	•
• •		*		Juliet
Heart5 Heart6 Heart7	Heart5	Heart6	Heart7	Sample

Right-click in the design sample window to see more features. The design sample can be deleted by right-clicking in the design sample window then select or "Delete" on the menu.



Auto Change of Serial Number

Use this function when changing numbers by certain unit.

1. Edit the font and size of text object with a number then press "Alt+N" key on a keyboard, or select [Menu] \rightarrow [Text] \rightarrow [Serial Number] \rightarrow [Advance Serial Number] to change the number automatically.

Te <u>x</u> t T <u>r</u> ansform <u>L</u> ayout <u>T</u> ool	<u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp
Insert Symbols	
<u>F</u> ont	
Paragraph	
Character Set	• nm
Convert to Single Line Font	
Orientation	
Reverse Text Order	
Serial Number	Advance Serial Number Alt+N
. Text Change Ctrl+W	Serial Number Option
Font Preview	Load Serial Number



$$ABC-\frac{1}{2}23456 \rightarrow ABC-\frac{1}{2}23456$$

2. Select [Menu] \rightarrow [Text] \rightarrow [Serial Number] \rightarrow [Serial Number Option] then enter a unit from the "Serial Number Auto Advancing Option" to change the serial number based on the assigned unit automatically.

<mark>,</mark>∎._□

	Serial Number Au Unit: 2	ito Advancing Option	OK Cancel		
ABC-12	3456		ABC	-123459)

3. If the serial number is not consistent, select [Menu] \rightarrow [Text] \rightarrow [Serial Number] \rightarrow [Load Serial Number]. Enter serial number in the "Lines to export" field or click "Load File" button to load from a file (.txt or .csv file format). Once the serial numbers are loaded, click "Export to object" button. The text on the selected text object is automatically changed, and the serial number is deleted from the list. The deleted numbers will be shown in the "Exported Lines."





Serial numbers can be loaded from a file separated by a comma (.csv) or text file (.txt). Each row of the file is recognized as one serial number, and the contents of each row separated by a comma are shown in the next line.



Loading and Editing Image

1. Loading an image

This program provides a function to load various types of image files. Supported image files are as follows.

BMP	Windows or OS/2's bitmap graphic file	
GIF	CompuServe graphic file	
JPG/JPEG	JPG/JPEG JPEG bitmap graphic file	
PNG	Portable Network Graphics bitmap graphic file	
PCX	Z Soft PC paintbrush bitmap file	
TIF/TIFF	Tagged Image File Format bitmap file	
WMF	Windows meta file	

Image file can be loaded through the following methods.



2. When "Open" window appears (as shown in the picture below), select the image to load then click "Open" button.

🕅 Open					×
Quick access Desktop	GOOD		G		
Libraries	<				>
Network	File name:			~	Open
	Files of type:	All Supported Images		~	Cancel

3. Drag the work area with the mouse to load the image according to desired size.



2. Converting and editing image

The machine can only engrave single-color images; not multi-color images. Multi-color images should be converted to single-color (1 bit) image.

[Converting to single-color image]

1. Select the image you want to convert. Click "Convert" button in the image object window then select "Monochrome (1bit)."



Or select the Transform menu \rightarrow Bitmap \rightarrow Mode \rightarrow Monochrome (1bit).

	Bitmap 🕨	Convert to Bitmap		
	Polyline Conversion	Edit	1	
	Convert to Curve	Mode •		Monochrome (1bit)
	Convert to Center Line			Grayscale (8bits)
~	Close Curve			Indexed Image (8bits)
	Group			RGB (24bits)

2. When "Color Image to Black & White" window appears, move the slider to adjust the level of color then click "OK" button.

Color Image to Black&White		×
Source Image:	Converted	_
Method: Black&White ~		
198		
	OK Cancel	

[Editing image]

Loaded image can be edited via "Paint" program in Windows.

Select the image object to be edited then right-click to select "Edit" or, select [Menu] \rightarrow [Transform] \rightarrow [Bitmap] \rightarrow [Edit].

MagicEngrave - [Design1 : Page1*]				>
Eile Edit View Insert Toolgath Te	egt Tra	nsform Layout Tool Window	Help	- 6
就 🖊 🔿 🗖 🔿 🧱 •	E	Tool		· 🗖 · 🔒 / 🍃 🕀
Object Property		Selection		Device
		Edit Dointe	-40 -35 -30 -25 -20 -15 -10 -5 0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85	; Device
Image	^ 🔺	Frase Line	A	29
File Path:	-	Shape Change		Engraver 1
C:WUsersWRYUWDesktop		Lavout Order		
	ñ	Invert Color		Click the button above to start engraving or cutting.
Transparent	43	Invert Color of Overlapped Area		
Convert >> Thickness:		Flip	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
EOR Omm		Rotation	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	(e)
Position and Size	1	Bitmap	Convert to Ritman	Refresh
Bachian V16.25mm		Table		Camera On
Posicion X: -10.55mm -		Polyline Conversion		AF
Y: -18.47mm		Convert to Polyline	Mode • · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
		Convert to Center Line		
Size X: 31.42mm		Close Curve		
Υ: 31.42mm		Group		
Keep Ratio				Detect
		Ungroup		Y Fiter
Line and Fill Shape	۲	laist		
		Joint		
Line Thick:		Disjoint		
Line Shape: 🗸 🗸		Object Realess Operation		
Line Color:		Object Boolean Operation	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
		Clipping Mask		
Fill Shape:		Make Clipping Mask		
El Color		Release Clipping Mask		
Fill Color:	100	Object Property		
	8		×	
				Device 🗢 rayer
l 🗆 🛤 🛤 🗶 🖷 🕍 🗖	1C	🕂 🤍 Fit to page 👻	- & & 🖳 🖑	
ady			(-16.35mm, -18.47mm) [31.42mm x 31	.42mm] NUM

Click [OK] to run Windows Paint program.

Image Edit Notification	×
mspaint.exe will be run.	
Once the image edit is completed, save the changes at "File"->"Save" menu, then close the program.	
Closing the image edit program is needed. Never forget it.	
Show this window again OK	

Then "Image Edit Notification" will appear.

Once editing is completed, click "Save" from Paint File menu then close the program to apply the changes.

Import a File in SVG format

MagicEngrave supports vector graphic files in SVG format. If a design is created in programs like Illustrator or CorelDraw, the design can be loaded as long as it is saved as SVG file.

1. Select File menu \rightarrow Save As from Illustrator program to save a file in SVG format.

File Edit Object Type Select	Filter Effect View Windo	w Help	10-10 (MARCE 10-10)	-	
New New from Template Open Open Recent Files Browse	Ctrl+N Shift+Ctrl+N Ctrl+O Alt+Ctrl+O	▼ Opacity: 100 ▶ % Style: ▼	X 1 0 mm Y 1 0 mm	×	
Close Save	Ctrl+W Ctrl+S	Save As			×
Save a copy Save a copy Save as Template	Shit+Ctfl+S Ait+Ctfl+S	🗇 🗇 Save in: [• • • • • • • • •
Save for Web Save a Version Revert Place	At+-Shift+Ctrl+S F12		Name	Size Status	Type Date Modified
Save for Microsoft Office Export Scripts					
Document Setup Document Color Mode File Info	Alt+Ctrl+P	File <u>n</u> ame:	< III Drawing.svg		•
Print	Ctrl+P	Exemat: Version Comments:	SVG (*.SVG) Adobe Illustrator (*.AI) Adobe PDF (*.PDF)		•
Exit	Ctrl+Q		Illustrator EPS (*.EPS)		
		Use OS Dialog			Save As Cancel

2. When SVG option window appears, click "OK" button to save changes.

0

	SVG 1.1	•	ОК
onts	0-21		Cancel
Type:	Adobe CEF	•	-
Subsetting:	None (Use System Fonts)	-	More Options
mages ——		0	
ocation:	Feebad @ Link		
Preserve Illust	rator Editing Capabilities		
Preserve Illust	rator Editing Capabilities		
Preserve Illust Description — infor	rator Editing Capabilities the cursor over a setting for additiona mation.		
Preserve Illust Description — infor	rator Editing Capabilities the cursor over a setting for additiona mation.	L'I	Show SVG Code
Preserve Illust Description — i Hold infor	rator Editing Capabilities the cursor over a setting for additiona	L.	Show SVG Code

3. Click SVG button to load the SVG file.

Asject Property 4	Design1: Page1*	RD R5
emplates ×		^ 29
Medal 🗸 🗸		Engraver 1
	Mi	Cick the button above to start
APC C		engraving or cutting.
ADU CON M	<u></u>	
Flat Ring Pen	17 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	
	帽	(
ABC	1 dd	
	······································	Refresh
Other Contraction Contra	褐	Camera (
Cyinder Embossing Circle		AE
		Ar
	宿	
	1	
Diamond Heart Rectangle		
	Here	
	<u>a</u>	•• Detect
		✓ Efter
	1 ²	ų Picei
	12g · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	A	
	194	
	lia	
	E	
	129	

4. Or select [Menu] \rightarrow [File] \rightarrow [Import...] to import a file.



5. Once the file is imported, click the work area to display the image.



Calibration

<u>* The machine is initially set up at the factory. Please contact your reseller first before making any changes to the settings of the machine.</u>

<u>* Only carbide and diamond tools can be calibrated. Do not calibrate tools such as endmill and cutter.</u>

<u>* Be sure to unlock the pressure lock when calibrating the machine. Nose, tool and material can be</u> damaged if the head is fixed or when the pressure lock is locked.

1. Touch Sensor (Tool Calibration)

- 1. Place and secure the material on the clamp.
- 2. When attaching the tool, keep the length short as possible.
- 3. Press 📚 (Flat) on operation button to move the tool to the clamp.
- 4. Press button to enter menu mode.
- 5. Use buttons. When **3.Calibration** menu appears on the LCD window, press and hold

button to run the menu.

6. Select "**1.Touch Sensor**" then press and hold

button to run the menu.

- 7. The tool will be lowered and come in contact with the material and will be placed in the center of the clamp.
- 8. Lower the tool by loosening the fixing bolt of the tool with a wrench, or lift the material with your hand to make the tool and material come in contact as shown in the picture below.



9. Long-press and hold button (for more than 3 seconds) until it beeps to confirm that the setting is saved then the tool will measure the material's height.

2. Laser Pointer Calibration

[Spindle]

3. Use

1. Place and secure a flat material on the clamp.

2. Press button to enter menu mode.

buttons. When **3.Calibration** menu appears on the LCD window, press



4. Select the "3.Pointer/Flat" then press

button to run the menu.

5. The tool draws a cross (+) line on the material and the laser pointer is turned on.

≺)

(►)(▲)

>) 6. Move the laser pointer to the center of the cross by using the direction keys then press button.



7. The laser pointer moves closer to the material to calibrate the laser pointer's origin. Move the laser pointer to (¥

press and hold the

button (for more than 3 seconds) until it beeps to confirm that the setting is saved.

direction keys on the engraving machine then long-

[Rotation clamp]

1. Remove the installed clamp. To remove the installed clamp, turn the clamping knob to the left then pull out the clamp and spacer block.

2. Secure the ring to the rotation clamp.

the center of the cross by using the

(When setting the laser pointer origin, rings with 18mm width (Max.18mm(0.7in) can be used. Rings with width over 18mm (Over 18mm(0.7in) cannot be used.





button to move the tool to the clamp.

buttons. When **3.Calibration** menu appears on the LCD window, then press 4. Use button to run the menu.

5. Select the "4.Pointer/Rotary" then press

button to run the menu.

6. The tool draws a cross (+) on the material and the laser pointer is turned on.



direction keys to move the laser pointer to the center of the cross then press

button to save the settings.



8. The laser pointer moves closer to the material to calibrate the laser pointer's origin. Move the laser pointer to

the center of the cross by using the

hold the

button (for more than 3 seconds) until it beeps to confirm that the setting is saved.

direction keys on the engraving machine then press and

[L-Tool]

1. Remove the installed clamp. To remove the installed clamp, turn the clamping knob to the left then pull out the clamp and spacer block.

2. Secure the ring to the rotation clamp.

(When setting the laser pointer origin, rings with 18mm width (Max.18mm(0.7in) can be used. Rings with width over 18mm (Over 18mm(0.7in) cannot be used.



3. Press

button to enter menu mode.

4. Press button. When **3.Calibration** menu appears on the LCD window, then press

5. Select the "**5.Pointer/L-Tool**" then press

Pull DOWN L-Tool now. button to run the menu.

6. When a "Pull DOWN" message appears on the LCD window (as shown below), pull the L-Tool down to the



7. The tool draws a cross (+) line on the material.

8. When "Push UP message appears on the LCD window (as shown below), push the L-Tool up then press the

button. The laser pointer is turned on.



9. Move the laser pointer to the center of the cross by using the



button to confirm that the setting is saved.



10. The laser pointer moves closer to the material to calibrate the laser pointer's origin. Move the laser pointer to button (for more than 3 seconds) until it beeps to confirm that the setting is saved. and hold the

3. Saving Multi-performance Clamp Origin Position

1. Press one of the buttons (Nove mode-Flat].

2. When the LCD window displays the following (as shown below), press 2. [Laser pointer] button to turn on the laser pointer.



4. Saving New Clamp Origin Position



4. Long-press and hold the volume button (for more than 3 seconds) until it beeps to confirm that the setting is saved.

5. Chuck Finger Origin point

1. Attach the chuck finger to the rotary clamp.





[Round chuck finger]





button to switch to [Move mode-Rotary].

When the LCD window displays the following (as shown below), press $\therefore I \rightarrow$ [Laser pointer] button to turn on the laser pointer.



3. Press



6. Press the button to save the setting.

6. Rotation Clamp Origin point (Z axis)

1. To enter the [Ring Inside] mode, press [Finger Mode] button.



2. Set the sharp tool into the rotation chuck as shown below.



3. Press () () () button to switch to [Move mode-Rotary].

4. When the LCD window displays the following (as shown below), press $\stackrel{\clubsuit}{=} \stackrel{\frown}{=} button to change the$ **[Z-axismode]**.



5. Use buttons to horizontally align the tip of the engraving tool to the tip of the blade (as shown below). Use buttons to adjust the distance between tools. Be sure the tips are closer to each other.



Z
6. Press the + Ø button to display save confirmation on the LCD window.
Short press button: Temporary save (message guide X)
Long-press and hold button (for more than 3 seconds): Permanent save



7. Camera calibration



1. Camera can be calibrated in the MagicEngrave program.

	00
Refresh	2
Camera On	Color/Grayscale Mode Change Image Adjustment Camera Viewer
	Camera Calibration
	Camera Selection

2. Use the button to adjust the red line (that appears on the screen) to center of the clamp. Once the red line is adjusted to the center, click [Next].



3. Place and secure the bakelite to the clamp. Set the calibration area to 90 x 70mm then click [Create Line]. Check the calibration results then click [OK].

Camera Calibration	- X
Calibration Area Settings Draw calibration	lines Secure a flat material
width: 90 (mm) height: 70 (mm) Apply Create	Lines with a minimum of 100mm * 80mm area.
Real-time camera view	Calibration Results
	NUMBER OF STREET, STRE
and the second se	
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
Move the corner marks to the four corners of the calibration	Adjust the red crosshairs so that they overlap exactly
ine with the mouse or keyboard and aligh them correctly.	with the crossnairs on the calibration line.
Back	OK Cancel

4. Press and hold the button (for more than 3 seconds) until it beeps to start engraving. A rectangle will be engraved for calibration.

5. Align the red corner marks to the calibration line corners with the mouse or keyboard.



129